

DECATUR PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT #61 BOARD OF EDUCATION AGENDA

Special Open Session Board Meeting Keil Administration Building 3rd Floor Conference Room 1st Floor Board of Education Room July 17, 2017 4:15 PM Open Session Closed Session Immediately Following 4:30 PM Open Session Continuing

Legend: AI = Action Item DI = Discus

DI = Discussion Item IO = Infe

IO = Information Only

Board of Education Mission Statement:

"As elected representatives of the community, the Decatur Public School Board establishes, promotes, reviews, and evaluates policies and programs, while setting high expectations for student learning and utilizing resources to foster a creative, effective and safe educational environment."

IO 1.0 CALL TO ORDER

Roll Call

IO 2.0 CALL FOR EXECUTIVE SESSION

The Board of Education will meet in Closed Executive Session to discuss the appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, performance or dismissal of specific employees of the public body, and discussion of collective negotiating matters between the Board and representatives of its employees.

- IO 3.0 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
- AI 4.0 APPROVAL OF AGENDA, JULY 17, 2017
- **IO 5.0 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION**

AI 6.0 ROLL CALL ACTION ITEM

- A. Personnel Action Items
- B. Contract Agreement between the Decatur Public School District 61 Board of Education and the Decatur Educational Support Personnel Association (DESPA), July 17, 2017 through June 30, 2021

IO 7.0 IMPORTANT DATES

NEXT MEETING

The public portion of the next regular meeting of the Board of Education will be at 6:30 PM, Tuesday, August 08, 2017 in the 1st Floor Board Room at the Keil Administration Building.

AI 8.0 ADJOURNMENT



Board of Education Decatur Public School District #61

Date: July 17, 2017	Subject: Personnel Action
Initiated By: Human Resources Department	Attachments: 3 Pages of Personnel Action
Reviewed By: Deanne Hillman, Director of Human Resources	

District Goal #3: Align organizational structure and resources to improve efficiency, effectiveness, and the financial health of the school district

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

Per Board Policy 5:30 Hiring Process and Criteria – The District hires the most qualified personnel consistent with budget and staffing requirements and in compliance with School board policy on equal employment opportunities and minority recruitment.

CURRENT CONSIDERATIONS:

All offers of employment are contingent upon the approval of the Board of Education. Accordingly, anyone who is offered and begins employment prior to the approval of the Board of Education understands that they will do so as a substitute. If the approval of the Board of Education is obtained, these substitutes will then be made whole retroactive to their first day of employment.

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS:

These positions are in the budget.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

The Administration respectfully requests the Board of Education approve all Personnel Action Items as presented.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

- X Approval
- □ Information
- **D**iscussion

BOARD ACTION:_____

To:	Board of Education
Fr:	Deanne Hillman
	Human Resources Director
Date:	July 14, 2017
	Board Date: July 17, 2017

Re: Personnel Action

EMPLOYMENT RECOMMENDATIONS

TEACHERS:

Name	Position	Effective Date
Kathryn Gibbons	Middle School Math, Hope Academy	August 14, 2017
Barbara Schmutz	Social-Emotional Alternative Program Special Education Teacher, Southeast	August 14, 2017
Dirk Shelton	Math, Eisenhower (Pending Licensure)	August 14, 2017

Pending Licensure – will begin as a Substitute Teacher in the position until Illinois Teacher Licensure is received.

MAINTENANCE:

Name	Position	Effective Date
James Baity	1 st Shift Maintenance Worker, Buildings and Grounds	July 24, 2017

SCHEDULE B:

Name	Position	Effective Date
Matthew Laws	Elementary Girls Basketball Coach, Stevenson	October 9, 2017
Curtiss Lindsey	High School Assistant Football Coach, MacArthur	August 7, 2017

START DATE CHANGE OFFICE PERSONNEL:

Name	Position	Effective Date
Mallory Cooper	Pre K Grant Secretary, 200 Days , Pershing	July 31, 2017

RESIGNATIONS

TEACHERS:

Name	Position	Effective Date
Maika Turner	Spanish, Eisenhower	August 14, 2017

TEACHING ASSISTANT:

Name	Position	Effective Date
Jennifer Roberson	Library Media Assistant, Garfield Montessori	July 11, 2017

OFFICE PERSONNEL:

Name	Position	Effective Date
LaQuerrie Hooper	Secretary to Elementary Principal, French	July 21, 2017

SCHEDULE B:

Name	Position	Effective Date
Kerstin Kresin	7 th Grade Girls Basketball Coach, Hope Academy	July 10, 2017

COMPENSATION RECOMMENDATIONS:

- The following staff members should be compensated <u>\$300.00</u> for participating in Instructional Planning on July 3, 5, & 6, 2017 at Eisenhower: Lynette Rotramel
 Elizabeth Brinkoetter
- The following staff members should be compensated for participating in Summer Staff Retreat on July 10 & 11, 2017 at South Shores:

Josh Fazekas	\$150.00	Kelly Smith	\$150.00
Chris Allen	\$150.00	Donna Kileen	\$25.00
Sue Howland	\$150.00	Sarah Walczyk	\$150.00
Paula Busboom	\$75.00	Brenda Sullins	\$75.00
Jeanene Edrington	\$100.00	Sue Krause	\$150.00
Heather Scott	\$150.00	Lorraine Major	\$150.00
Greg Smith	\$150.00	Nancy Huddleston	\$75.00
Lacy Wood	\$150.00	Bobbi Clark	\$150.00
Brad Williams	\$150.00	Tricia Athey	\$150.00
Anita Schwartz	\$150.00	Deb Harper	\$150.00

• The following staff members should be compensated for participating in Summer Retreat 2017-2018 Planning Session on May 31, 2017 at Durfee:

0			
Kristi Adams	\$100.00	Cassandra Mann	\$100.00
Sara Bodzin	\$100.00	Teri Maple	\$100.00
Maria Bohnsack	\$100.00	Julie McGeehon	\$50.00
Charisse Brown	\$100.00	Jaclyn Patterson	\$100.00
Tammy Carver	\$100.00	Amanda Roberts	\$100.00
Elana Delaney	\$50.00	Christine Seaver	\$100.00
Caryn Fuiten	\$100.00	Julie Turner	\$100.00
Kimberly Hainline	\$100.00	Karen Walker	\$100.00
Heather Herron	\$100.00	Stacy Witts	\$100.00



Board of Education Decatur Public School District #61

Date: July 17, 2017	Subject: Approval of the Decatur Educational Support Personnel Association (DESPA) Contract Agreement
Initiated By: Deanne Hillman, Director of Human Resources	Attachments: Decatur Educational Support Personnel Association (DESPA) Contract Agreement
Reviewed By: Paul Fregeau, Superintendent	

District Goal #3: Align organizational structure and resources to improve efficiency, effectiveness, and the financial health of the school district

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

The most recent Decatur Educational Support Personnel Association contract expired on June 30, 2017. An administrative team met with members of the Decatur Educational Support Personnel Association and developed terms for an updated four (4) year contract. The Decatur Educational Support Personnel Association voted in the affirmative for this contract on July 14, 2017.

CURRENT CONSIDERATIONS:

This is a four (4) year contract which will be implemented from July 17, 2017 through June 30, 2021.

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS:

The financial obligations in this contract will be accounted for in the appropriate future budget. The contract provides for a wage increase of 2.5% each of the four (4) years.

DESPA Projected Wages

FY2018 - \$0.20 + Step Cost - \$2,664,124.60 Increase 66,139.20 Average Increase 2.5%

FY2019 - \$0.21 + Step Cost - \$2,731,733.56 Increase \$67,608.96 Average Increase 2.5%

FY2020 - \$0.22 + Step Cost - \$2,800,812.28 Increase \$69,078.72 Average Increase 2.5% FY2021 - \$0.23 + Step Cost \$2,871,360.76 Increase \$70,548.48 Average Increase 2.5%

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

The Administration respectfully requests the Board of Education approve the updated four (4) year Contract Agreement between the Decatur Public School District 61 Board of Education and the Decatur Educational Support Personnel Association (DESPA), July 17, 2017 through June 30, 2021, as presented.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

- **_X_** Approval
- ____ Information
- ____ Discussion

BOARD ACTION: _____

Summary of Tentative Agreements Board of Education of DPS 61 and DESPA

The contract pursuant to the following tentative agreements ("TA") was, as of July 14, 2017, ratified by DESPA membership and now comes before the Board for its approval. The following constitutes a summary of tentative agreements, and is meant neither to change nor clarify intent of the language. In the event of conflict in meaning between this summary and a TA, the TA controls.

Art. II D. – "any respective day" in replacement of "any given day" – clarifies meaning so that a charge for meeting is consistent with the cost of the day it is held.

Art. VI. B. 1. – grammatical change to holiday names.

Art. VIII. A. – "because of" replaced with "during" – grammatical improvement.

Art. IX. C. 3. – Moves present language.

Art. IX. C. 9. – replaces the definition of availability to during "open enrollment."

Art. IX. C. 9. c. – strikes minimum of 10 employees to enroll in dental plan.

Art. XI. D. 1. – Changes name of staff members in position evaluation committee to agreement.

Art. XIII. B. – eliminates language regarding withholding of paycheck until completion of physical examination.

Art. III. C. – Eliminates mandatory retirement.

Art. II. E. – Eliminates requirement to send board packet to DESPA president, making it required to be made available to DESPA president or designee when made available to Board members.

Art. V. D – Adds DESPA designee to grievance procedure.

Art. VIII. B. 6. – Adds seniority retention to military leave.

Art. IV. C. 1. – Adds DESPA designee to discharge process.

Appendix 2. - Adds Director of HR and DESPA President or designee to prior work experience credit agreement.

Art. XI. D. 4. – Changes titles to Business Manager (title change only) and DESPA designee in position evaluation committee membership.

Art. VII B. 2. – eliminates suggestion of one day notice for personal leave use.

Art. IX. B. 1. – Clarifies overtime/extra-time provision.

Appendix Section 3 – Eliminates language regarding substitute employees not covered by agreement.

Art. III. B. 3. – Eliminates language regarding substitutes, replaces it with language defining internal substitution rate for part-time employees.

Art. VIII A. 9. – Reduces insurance retention period to that required by COBRA (from 1 year).

Art. VIII. B. 4. – Reduces from 2 years to 1 year the right to extended illness leave.

Art. XI. A. – Eliminates requirement to send physical vacancy notices to schools and DESPA.

Art. XIII. D. – Changes the way internal training is required to be provided.

Art. XIII. F. 3. – Eliminates conflict in part-time employee insurance provision by pointing to other section wherein the requirement is kept.

Art. XIII. C. – Replaces Acceptance of Gifts language with the limitations imposed by law.

Art. IX. C. 4. – Replaces insurance committee language with language from MOU reached by insurance committee.

Art. VI. A. 6. – Changes employee classification names, removes joint DESPA approval process for vacation assignments, adds employee right to utilize unpaid days in order to reserve as many as 2 vacation days during breaks.

Art. XI. A. 4. a. – Eliminates redundant transfer process language, clarifies involuntary transfer, clarifies interview requirement for internal transfer requests.

Art. VI. A. 5. – Changes definition of vacation time requirement (from 52 week to full-time), Clarifies when payment for unused accumulated vacation time occurs, extends from 5 to 10 days the employee's vacation carry-over and sick leave rollover rights.

Art. IX. C. 2. – Clarifies insurance provision – grandfathers unanticipated participants in earlier plan rights against elimination of benefit option.

Art. VI. B. 3. – Clarifies holiday pay and scheduling; mirrors existing practice.

Art. VII. A. – Eliminates emergency leave and all references to emergency leave. Art. IX. C. 5. – Extends post-retirement insurance to all IMRF-eligible employees (as required by the plan).

Art. VII. A. 8. – Eliminates sick leave loan

Art. VIII. A. 8. – Reduces health and life insurance coverage from 1 year to 6 months following exhaustion of sick leave benefits.

Art. IX. D. – Adds .5% wage increase to earnings for employees serve 15-17 years in the District.

The parties also agreed to a new table to replace Schedule B and Schedule C.

AGREEMENT

WORKING CONDITIONS AND WAGE SCHEDULE

BETWEEN

BOARD OF EDUCATION, DISTRICT #61

DECATUR, ILLINOIS

AND

DECATUR EDUCATIONAL SUPPORT PERSONNEL ASSOCIATION

JULY 17, 20173 - JUNE 30, 202117

CONTENTS

ARTICLE	TITLE	PAGE
Ι	Recognition	1
II	Rights and Responsibilities	1-3
III	Working Conditions	3-4
IV	Performance of Duties, Discharge and Suspension	4-6
V	Grievance Procedure	6-8
VI	Vacations and Holidays	8- <u>10</u> 9
VII	Short Term Leaves	10-1 <u>2</u> ਤ
VIII	Extended Leaves of Absence	13-1 <u>5</u> 6
IX	Compensation and Insurance	1 <u>5</u> 6-1 <u>8</u> 9
Х	Summer Employment	<u>18-</u> 19
XI	Promotions, Vacancies, Transfers and Position Eliminations	19-2 <u>1</u> 2
XII	Evaluation	2 <u>1</u> 2-2 <u>2</u> 3
XIII	Miscellaneous Provisions	2 <u>2</u> 3-24
XIV	Limitations	<u>24-</u> 25
XV	Modification and Waiver	26 <u>5</u>
	Appendix	27-28 26
	Schedule A	2 <u>7</u> 9-
		3 <u>0</u> 2
	Schedule B	3 <u>1</u> 3
	Schedule C	34-35

PREAMBLE

This Agreement, developed and agreed to by the Board of Education for School District No. 61, Decatur, Illinois, and the Decatur Educational Support Personnel Association shall take effect on the <u>seventeenth first</u> day of July 20173, and continue in effect through June 30, 20<u>21</u>47, and shall continue from year to year unless either party notifies the other in writing ninety (90) days prior to expiration of their desire to change, alter, or modify the contents of the Agreement. Both parties shall meet at least thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of the Agreement to discuss the proposed revisions. Any changes or additions to the Agreement shall, when agreed upon, be incorporated in the Agreement.

ARTICLE I RECOGNITION

- A. The Board of Education for School District No. 61, Decatur, Illinois, hereinafter referred to as the "Board" recognizes the Decatur Educational Support Personnel Association, hereinafter referred to as the "Association", as the representative of all educational office personnel except confidential employees as defined by the Illinois Public Labor Relations Act, employed in the Decatur Public Schools for the purpose of negotiation of wages, hours, and conditions of employment.
- B. Both the Board and the Association agree that each employee has the right to join or not to join any organization for his/her professional or economic improvement.
- C. All benefits, rights, and responsibilities provided by this Agreement shall apply equally to all educational office personnel covered by this Agreement.

ARTICLE II RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES

A. Association Business

- 1. Authorized association representatives shall be granted time to attend state or national association meetings or attend to other business of the local association, provided that the amount of time so taken does not exceed twenty (20) days per year.
- 2. The Board of Education shall allocate \$500 for DESPA members to attend state conventions and/or local workshops.

B. Fair Share

Each employee, as a condition of their employment, on or before thirty (30) days from the date of commencement of duties or the effective date of this Agreement, whichever is later, shall join the Association or pay a fair share fee to the Association equivalent to the amount of dues uniformly required of members of the Association, including local, state, and national dues. In the event that the employee does not pay their fair share fee directly to the Association by a certain date as established by the Association, the Board shall deduct the fair share fee from the wages of the non-member.

Such fee shall be paid to the Association by the Board no later than ten (10) days following deduction.

In the event of any legal action against the employer brought in a court or administrative agency because of its compliance with the Article, the Association agrees to defend such action, at its own expense and through its own counsel, provided:

- 1. The employer gives immediate notice of such action in writing to the Association, and permits the Association intervention as a party if it so desires; and
- 2. The employer gives full and complete cooperation to the Association and its counsel in securing and giving evidence, obtaining witnesses and making relevant information available at both trial and all appellate levels.

The Association agrees that in any action so defended, it will indemnify and hold harmless the Employer from any liability for damages and costs imposed by a final judgment of a court or administrative agency as a direct consequence of the employer's compliance with this article. It is expressly understood that this save harmless provision will not apply to any claim, demand, suit, or other form of liability which may arise as a result of any type of willful misconduct by the Board or the Board's imperfect execution of the obligations imposed upon it by this Article.

The obligation to pay a fair share fee will not apply to any employee who, on the basis of a bonafide religious tenet of teaching of a church or religious body of which the employee is a member, objects to the payment of a fair share fee to the Association. Upon proper substantiation and collection of the entire fee, the Association will make payment on behalf of the employee to a mutually agreeable non-religious charitable organization as per Association policy and the Rules and Regulations of the Illinois Educational Labor Relations Board.

C. Mail Service

The Association shall have the right to use the District e-mail service, District mail service and mail boxes for communications to members of the bargaining unit. No postage shall be paid by the Board for the Associations' communications.

D. Use of the Building Facilities

The Association shall have the right to use school building facilities at any time for official Association meetings. The Association may request the use of school building facilities for general membership meetings or other Association purposes and such requests will be handled in the same manner as all other requests received by the Board for use of District facilities except that charges for use of District facilities will be limited to custodial and maintenance costs when the purpose of such use is an official Association general membership meeting and custodial/maintenance costs exceed those costs normally incurred on any given-respective day.

E. Board Packets

The Board of Education shall <u>make available deliver</u> a copy of the Board Packet to the President of DESPA <u>or DESPA Designee</u> at his/her job site when copies are <u>deliveredwhen available</u> to the Board members.

F. Committees

DESPA shall have the right to inquire about membership on committees. DESPA shall be afforded a seat on committees involved in hiring of building level administrators. District level administrator hiring committees shall be staffed at the discretion of the board of education, but such discretion shall not preclude DESPA from asking to be included. DESPA shall have the right to identify other committees in which it desires to be included on a regular and ongoing basis.

ARTICLE III WORKING CONDITIONS

A. <u>Work Year</u>

The work year for all educational office employees shall be as indicated on Schedule B, Classification of Educational Office Personnel.

B. Work Day

- 1. The working hours of office employees shall be nine (9) hours eight (8) hours on duty and one (1) hour for lunch as scheduled by the immediate supervisor.
- 2. Upon approval of the immediate supervisor, the working hours for educational office personnel may be adjusted to reflect a one-half hour lunch period.
- 3. Substitutes shall work the same number of hours as the office employee they are replacing, and shall receive pay only for the actual hours worked. Any part-time secretary substituting for a full-time secretary should do so at his/her (part-time) secretary rate.
- 4. All employees shall be allowed one (1) fifteen-minute break in the morning and one (1) fifteen minute break in the afternoon.
- 5. Work days for office employees include all weekdays, except those designated as holidays in Article VI of this Agreement, and includes days of teachers' institutes.
- 6. Any regularly scheduled school days when students and teachers are not in attendance due to unusual circumstances, such as weather conditions, shall be considered a working day. Employees will have the option of working, using a vacation day, using a personal leave day, using a sick leave day, or taking the day off without pay.

C. <u>Retirement</u>

1. The mandatory retirement date for all employees of Decatur School District No. 61 shall be the end of the school year following the employee's attainment of the age for mandatory retirement by law at the time such age is reached. (Section 7–13 of Board Policies & Operations Manual.) 2.1. The ending date for terminating employees shall be to include unused vacation days and included in unused vacation days shall be a proration of vacation (rounded to the nearest one-half day) earned in the fiscal year of termination. Vacation entitlement shall be based on the number of days added to the employee's record on the previous June 30. Terminating employees who have taken more vacation days than entitled shall reimburse the Board for the number of vacation days taken but not due them.

D. Protection of Employees

All employees shall be protected against any harassment, interference, language or badgering by any group or individual on the District premises. It shall be the responsibility of the Supervisor and/or the Superintendent of Schools to take whatever actions are deemed necessary to provide employees adequate protection in such situations, including but not limited to enforcement of building security. This does not preclude the responsibility of the employees to work with parents or guardians in resolving school problems.

The general policy, subject to emergency exceptions, shall be that no action against an employee may be taken on a complaint by a parent of a student or by a student, unless such proposed action is first reported in writing to such employee affected thereby and the employee is given an opportunity for a hearing before a representative of the Board concerning the complaint and action proposed to be taken thereon.

E. Surveillance

The purpose of surveillance equipment is to secure the buildings. The purpose of surveillance equipment is not to evaluate the performance of employees or to monitor their behavior or conduct. If the review of data inadvertently reveals alleged incidents of employee misconduct, the employee and the Association will be notified if the District intends to investigate the alleged employee misconduct incident. Such notification will be in writing. The Association or Employee's representative may review the data depicting the alleged employee misconduct.

ARTICLE IV PERFORMANCE OF DUTIES, DISCHARGE AND SUSPENSION

A. Performance of Duties

It is hereby agreed that all staff members covered by this Agreement shall comply with all working rules and perform in a satisfactory manner the job related duties assigned and in the manner prescribed by their supervisors.

B. Discipline

1. Pre-Disciplinary Meeting

When the Board is contemplating administering discipline, a pre-disciplinary fact finding meeting will be held.

2. Notice

The employee and the Association will be given 3 work days (which are days the District is open for business) prior written notice of the scheduled meeting, except in cases of extreme emergency. Such notice shall contain the reason, date, time and location of the meeting, and shall inform the employee of his/her right to DESPA representation. An agenda listing the reasons for such a meeting shall accompany this written notice. Every employee has the right to have criticisms, disciplinary meetings and reprimands held in private.

C. Discharge/Suspension

- Staff members who fail to satisfactorily perform their assigned duties may be discharged or suspended, but in respect to discharge shall be given at least one warning notice in writing within twelve (12) months prior to discharge. A copy of any notice of suspension or discharge shall be given to the DESPA President or <u>DESPA Designee</u> except that no warning notice need be given prior to discharge if the staff member is a probationary employee (probationary period is the first 90 days of employment). The following are among causes for discharge:
 - a.) Willfully causing any bodily injury to any person upon the school premises.
 - b.) Possession of intoxicants or controlled substances not prescribed by an attending physician and/or being intoxicated or drugged on school premises.
 - c.) Stealing school property or property of others.
 - d.) Willful destruction of school property or damage to school property because of carelessness, neglect, or not following instruction pertaining to the care and operation of such property and equipment.
 - e.) Willful insubordination or sleeping on the job. Refusal or failure to perform work assigned. Use of abusive or threatening language, or action toward the foreman, supervisor, or other employees.
 - f.) Continued and repeated failure to satisfactorily perform assigned duties.
 - g.) Employees who accept regular employment during the work week in addition to their assignment with the Decatur Public Schools and it interferes in any way with their job with the Decatur Public Schools.
 - h.) Any employee who leaves a job during regular employment hours without consent of the supervisor, unless such departure was caused by an emergency.
 - i.) Use of school vehicles, machines, tools, etc., for personal or private use without the proper approval of the Superintendent of Schools or his/her designated representative.
 - j.) Knowingly having falsified job applications, records, reports, time sheets, etc.

2. Suspension

The Board at its option, may suspend without pay rather than discharge an employee if in its opinion the situation warrants such action. The maximum period of such suspension shall be ninety (90) working days. In determining whether an employee should be discharged or suspended, the Board will consider the staff member's employment record, the nature of the offense and any other pertinent information, and their decision shall be final.

- 3. The suspension or discharge of an employee will be handled in the following manner.
 - a.) When the Board or its representative determines to suspend or discharge an employee, the employee shall be told the reason for the action and given an opportunity to reply to the charges. Notice of either suspension or discharge will be given in writing before the employee departs the premises of Decatur Public Schools.
 - b.) If the employee feels he/she has been dealt with unjustly and a hearing is desired, he/she shall proceed according to the grievance procedure.
 - c.) If it is found that the employee has been dealt with in an unjust manner, the Board will reinstate the employee in his/her job with all former rights and benefits restored, and will pay the employee all loss of earnings.

ARTICLE V GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

- A. <u>Definition</u> A grievance shall mean a written complaint by an employee, a group of employees or the Association that there has been an alleged violation, misinterpretation, or misapplication of the agreement.
- B. <u>Constraints</u> Any investigation or other handling or processing of any grievances by the grievant or the Association shall be conducted so as to result in no interference with or interruption whatsoever of the instruction program and related work activities of the grievant or of the District's employees.
- C. <u>General Provisions</u>
 - 1. No employee at any stage of the grievance procedure will be required to meet with any administrator or supervisor without an Association representative.
 - 2. Any employee who participates in the grievance procedure shall not be subject to disciplinary action or reprisal because of such participation.
 - 3. The employee or his/her Association representative has the right to be present at all hearings and meetings concerning his/her grievance.

- 4. In any instance where the Association is not representing the grievant, the administrator or supervisor receiving the grievance or making the decision shall notify the Association in writing of all meetings, hearings, and the resolution at any level. Any agreement made between the administrator and/or supervisor with the member shall be in accordance with the mutually agreed to agreement between the Board and DESPA.
- 5. A grievance may be initiated and/or conducted by:
 - a. an employee on his/her own behalf
 - b. an employee accompanied by an Association representative
 - c. an Association representative at the employee's request
 - d. the Association
 - e. group of employees
- 6. All references to days shall mean school days, except that between the end of the school year in June and the beginning of the next school year, days, shall mean days when the District's business offices are open.
- 7. All time limits may be extended by mutual agreement between the parties.
- 8. Grievance procedure Personnel File: All records related to a grievance shall be filed separately from the personnel file of the employee.

D. Procedure for Adjustment of Grievances

<u>Informal Conference</u> - Within ten (10) days of when the grievant knew or should have known of the occurrence of the event which first gave rise to the grievance, a complaint shall first be discussed with the object of resolving the matter informally. In the event the matter is resolved informally and an Association representative was not present at the adjustment of the complaint, the supervisor shall inform the <u>Association presidentDESPA President or DESPA Designee</u> of the adjustment.

Step One:

In the event the matter is not resolved informally, the grievant or the Association shall present a written statement on a form of the alleged violation to the principal or other appropriate supervisor within ten (10) days of the informal conference. The supervisor shall, within ten (10) school days of the receipt of the grievance confer with the grievant and/or his/her Association representative to try to resolve the grievance. Within ten (10) school days after the completion of the conference, the supervisor shall give his/her written decision. A copy of the decision shall be given to the Association.

Step Two:

In the event that the grievance has not been resolved in the first step, the Association or the grievant may file an appeal to the Superintendent or his/her designee. The appeal shall be made within ten (10) school days after the receipt of the supervisor's decision. Within ten (10) school days of the receipt of the appeal, the Superintendent or his/her designee shall confer with the Association and the grievant in an effort to resolve the grievance. The Superintendent, within ten (10) school days following the conference shall file his/her written decision with the grievant and the Association.

Step Three:

Within thirty (30) school days after receiving the decision of the Superintendent or his/her designee, the Association may submit the grievance to binding arbitration of the American Arbitration Association (AAA). The arbitrator shall follow the standard rules of the AAA. The Board and the grievant shall share equally the arbitrator's fees and the court reporter's expenses.

ARTICLE VI VACATIONS AND HOLIDAYS

A. Vacations

1. Staff members in the District, who work 20 or more hours per week, shall be entitled to a vacation with pay in accordance with the following schedule <u>and Schedule B</u>:

Days of Vacation Entitlement - Weeks of Employment by Classification

	<u>B2, C2,</u>			
	<u>52-50</u>	<u>C</u> 3, D	49-46C1	<u>45-41</u> A2, B1
One to Five	10	9	8	
Six to Ten	15	14	13	
Eleven or More	20	19	18	

Vacation will be allotted on July 1 of the current fiscal year.

- Staff members employed on or before September 1 shall be considered as having one

 (1) year of service as of June 30. Staff members hired after September 1 shall
 receive a prorated vacation entitlement.
- 3. After a full year of employment with District No. 61, a staff member who voluntarily terminates his/her employment, retires, or is terminated because of the elimination of his/her position shall receive a prorated vacation entitlement. Employees who are discharged shall receive no vacation entitlement and employees who are suspended shall receive no vacation entitlement for the period of their suspension. Employees reemployed within six (6) months following termination due to elimination of position, shall receive vacation entitlement held prior to termination.
- 4. An employee must have worked a minimum of sixty (60) percent of his/her scheduled work days or have been paid accrued benefits in the preceding fiscal year in order to be eligible for any vacation.

- 5. Full-time <u>Ss</u>taff members employed on a fifty-two (52) week basis may take their vacation at any time during the year subject to the approval of their supervisor. Payment for unused accumulated vacation time upon separation from employment shall be made no sooner than 30 days following such separation. It is <u>itthe parties</u>' intent that such payment shall be sheltered from and against IMRF contribution.
 - a. A maximum of ten (10) vacation days may be carried forward to the following year.
 - b. Unused vacation days sin excess of the above ten (10) days will be added to the employee's accumulated sick leave on July 1. Up to five (5) days of vacation may be carried over into the first six (6) months of the next fiscal year. Any unused vacation entitlement, in excess of five (5) days, is to be added to the staff member's accumulated sick leave.
- 5.6. It is understood that during breaks (Christmas & Spring), in Classifications A2, B1, and C1 should not be scheduled to work. Those employees shall use accrued vacation for that time. Employees may reserve as many as two (2) vacation days for future breaks and instead elect to take unpaid days. It is understood that if the employee has exhausted all accrued vacation, the employee shall not work nor be paid for remaining day(s) unless the employee has personal days she/he elects to use. If the employee is requested to work by administration during the breaks, the employee and their his/her administrator will forward the request in advance to the HR Director. The HR Director will give a written list of those approved to work over breaks to the DESPA President or designee by two weeks after each break.
- 7. Staff members who are full time employees but work less than fifty-two (52) weeks per year, and are employed on a continuous basis for the number of weeks required for his/her position as specified in Schedule B shall have vacation entitlement and may take their vacation at any time during the year subject to the approval of his/her supervisor. Any unused vacation entitlement is to be added to the staff member's accumulated sick leave.

6.____

B. Holidays

- 1. Office employees, who work 20 or more hours per week, shall have the following days off duty with pay:
 - a.) Independence Day Thanksgiving Day Labor Day Friday after Thanksgiving Columbus Day December 24 Veteran's Day Christmas Day Pulaski Day New Year's Day Martin Luther King Jr.'s Birthday President's Day Spring Break Day-Friday before Easter Memorial Day

b.) No member of the bargaining unit shall be required to work on legal holidays unless an emergency or continuous operation and maintenance of school facilities requires his/her attendance.

If any of the above legal holidays ceases to be a legal holiday, employees shall not have that day off duty with pay, but one day's time will be added to vacation eligibility.

- 2. Persons working twenty (20) hours or more a week, but less than full time, will receive holiday pay for days off that fall within their work year.
- 3. If any of the above holidays fall on Saturday or Sunday and are not granted the preceding Friday or succeeding Monday, that holiday will be added to the employee's vacation entitlement. If a holiday is not observed in accordance with the legal holiday date or falls on a Saturday or Sunday, the observance will be scheduled on an alternate date.
- 4. An employee must be in pay status the day before and the day after a holiday to be paid for the holiday. If ill the day before or after a holiday, the employee must have and use benefit time in order to be paid for the holiday.
- 5. If a staff member takes a religious holiday, other than those included in the list of approved holidays noted in paragraph one (1) above, the absence shall be considered time off without pay unless the staff member elects to have it charged against his/her vacation.

ARTICLE VII SHORT TERM LEAVES

A. Sick Leave

1. Sick <u>and emergency leave leave</u> without loss of pay shall be credited annually to each office employee who works 20 or more hours per week on the first day of each fiscal year in accordance with the following schedule:

Days of Sick and Emergency Leave Entitlement by Classification

Weeks Clasification Classification of Employment		<u>——Number of Days</u> Days
Per Year		
4 8-52 <u>B2, C2, C3, D</u>	16	
<u>42-47-C1</u>	14	
39-41<u>A2, B1</u>-	13	
- 38 and less		

 <u>Absences for Sick Emergency-Leave shall be allowed under accrued sick leave.</u> <u>EmergencySick leave shall include the adoption of a child, quarantine, serious</u> <u>illness, (includes mental health, alcoholism, and drug abuse) or-death or illness in</u> <u>the immediate family or household.* (Immediate family shall include wife, husband,</u> <u>child, father, mother, sister, brother, grandparent, grandchild, daughter-in-law, son-</u> <u>in-law of the employee; and father, mother, sister, or brother of spouse of the</u> <u>employee; step-mother, step-father, step-sister, step-brother of the employee or</u> <u>spouse of the employee; or persons in loco parentis of employee.</u> * Anyone residing in the home more than six (6) months of the calendar year.

- 3. <u>A doctor's statement shall be required for all absences due to quarantine or serious</u> <u>illness (includes mental health, alcoholism, and drug abuse) in the immediate</u> <u>family.</u> 3.
- 4. Employees hired after the fiscal year begins shall be credited with the prorated number of sick leave days rounded off to the nearest one-half (1/2) day.
- 5. A doctor's statement may be required for personal illness charged against sick leave. If personal illness is claimed, a doctor's statement may be required after an employee has been absent three (3) consecutive days. The employee is responsible for obtaining the doctor's statement. A doctor's statement may be required in certain other cases by the School District where the absence of the employee is less than three consecutive days. In this case, the cost of obtaining this certificate shall be borne by the District and the District may require in this instance the employee to see a doctor of its own choosing. If an employee is absent for serious illness (includes mental health, alcoholism, and drug abuse) or for hospitalization, a doctor's release for regular duties must be presented before returning to work.
- 6. Official records of sick leave entitlement and use will be maintained in hours. The hours of sick leave entitlement will be calculated by multiplying the number of days of entitlement by the number of hours in the staff member's work day. Sick leave may be used in increments of .25, .5, and .75 hours.
- 7. Employees may accumulate 1920 hours (240 days) of sick and emergency leave or the maximum credit amount allowed by IMRF if greater.
- 8. Accumulated sick leave shall automatically terminate on the date that a staff member's employment terminates. Employees reemployed within one calendar year, following termination due to elimination of position, shall receive sick and emergency-leave entitlement held prior to termination.
- 9. With the consent and on the conditions set forth by their immediate supervisor, fulltime employees released by their doctors only for part-time work may return from sick leave and work part-time until their doctors release them for full-time work.

10.Sick Leave Loan

- An employee may borrow sick leave hours at full pay and benefits from other bargaining unit employees with the written consent of the lending employee and the written approval of the Board, provided:
- a. The borrowing employee has used all his/her personal accumulated vacation, sick and personal hours, including the current year's allotment.

- b. Borrowing employees working 8 hours per day may borrow no more than a total of 160 sick leave hours in any given fiscal year. Borrowing employees working 6 to 7.5 hours per day may borrow no more than a total of 120 sick leave hours in any given fiscal year. Borrowing employees working 4 to 5.5 hours per day may borrow no more than a total of 80 sick leave hours in any given fiscal year. Hours must be used in the fiscal year they are borrowed.
- c. An employee-lender may lend no more than a total of 40 sick leave hours in any given fiscal year.
- d. The borrowing employee may repay the employee lender(s). If repayment is desired by the lender, it shall occur within the next two (2) fiscal years following the fiscal year of the loan.
- e. Should an employee fail to repay the loan(s) or cease to be an employee of the District prior to the full and complete repayment of such loan(s) to an employee lender(s), the Board is under no obligation or liability to repay the employee lender for sick leave hours not repaid. Sick leave hours loaned but not repaid as provided in this Article shall be lost by the employee lender.
- f. Repayment of a sick leave hour loan is effectuated by the employee's execution of a written repayment directive sent to the Superintendent or designee within the time limits of Paragraph d.
- g. Sick leave hours loaned by an employee shall not be available to the lender until they are repaid as set forth in Paragraph f.
- h. Employees shall not be required to borrow hours prior to making application for disability benefits from the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund.

B. Personal Day

- 1. Staff members will be permitted three (3) personal leave days annually, with such to be deducted from sick and emergency-leave entitlement. Personal leave may be used in increments of one (1) hour.
- <u>2.</u> A written request for personal leave (no reason need be stated) shall be made to the appropriate supervisor in advance of taking the leave.
 <u>2.</u> If possible, the leave request shall be made at least one day in advance of taking the leave.
- 3. Personal leave days may not be taken during the first five (5) days and the last five (5) days of school. Exceptions to this shall include emergencies, religious holidays, and times when the staff member or his/her immediate family is personally involved in a court case, graduation exercise, or an honor convocation.
- 4. Personal leave days may be used before or after a holiday under the following conditions:
 - a. Not more than one secretary per immediate supervisor may utilize said leave for each holiday.
 - b. Five (5) days written notice must be given.

C. <u>Emergency Leave</u>

- Absences for Emergency Leave shall be allowed under accrued sick leave. Emergency leave shall include the adoption of a child, quarantine, serious illness, (includes mental health, alcoholism, and drug abuse) or death in the immediate family or household.* (Immediate family shall include wife, husband, child, father, mother, sister, brother, grandparent, grandchild, daughter-in-law, son-in-law of the employee; and father, mother, sister, or brother of spouse of the employee; stepmother, step-father, step-sister, step-brother of the employee or spouse of the employee; or persons in loco parentis of employee.) * Anyone residing in the home more than six (6) months of the calendar year.
- 2. A doctor's statement shall be required for all absences due to quarantine or serious illness (includes mental health, alcoholism, and drug abuse) in the immediate family.

D. Funeral Leave

- 1. Absences for attendance at funerals shall be allowed under accrued sick leave provided such absence does not exceed the date of the funeral and reasonable travel time.
- 2. If a staff member is requested to serve as a pallbearer and, to do so, must be absent from work, the absence shall be considered time off without pay unless the staff member elects to have it charged against accrued sick leave.
- 3. An employee wishing to attend the funeral of a currently enrolled student or a current staff member will not be charged a sick day to attend the funeral. Arrangements can be made with the supervisor and with the cooperation of other employees to cover the responsibilities of the employee allowed to attend. Arrangements are acceptable provided they do not require a full day of absence or the hiring of a substitute.

E. Disability Benefits

- 1. An employee participating in the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund, after employment of one (1) year, is eligible for disability benefits. These benefits shall begin on the 31st day after the illness or absence began or, if the employee has accumulated sick leave of over thirty (30) days. Employee can use temporary benefits on the 31st day off without exhausting sick leave benefits. This is the employee's option.
- 2. Sick leave benefits available to employees are to be coordinated with benefits which an employee receives under Worker's Compensation. If an employee eligible to receive sick leave is injured in the course of employment and receives disability benefits under Worker's Compensation the employee shall receive from Decatur Public School District #61 the difference between the Worker's Compensation benefits and the wages or salary to which the employee is entitled under the Decatur Public School District #61 leave program. The accumulated sick leave of the

employee shall be reduced proportionately based upon the compensation remitted by the Decatur Public School District #61.

Pro-rated sick leave shall be available to the employee only to the extent that an employee has accumulated sick leave days, so that an employee shall receive full pay upon days which an employee is unable to work due to work-related injury or illness, but in no instance will an employee be entitled to a combination of sick leave benefits and Worker's Compensation benefits in excess of the employee's regular pay. In no event will an employee be entitled to sick leave benefits beyond the accumulation of sick leave days of that employee. An employee on Worker's Compensation may waive sick leave pay, in which case the employee shall not be charged with sick leave use.

F. Accident of Employees

- 1. When an accidental injury occurs, such accidental injury shall be immediately referred to a certified medical doctor.
- 2. Employees may select a physician of their own choosing.
- 3. Worker's Compensation, as required by law, is provided all employees. It provides first aid, medical and surgical services, and compensation for periods of disablement, in case of the on-the-job accidental injury while an employee is engaged in official district business. Worker's Compensation shall be administered by a provider under contract with the Board.

ARTICLE VIII EXTENDED LEAVES OF ABSENCE

- A. The following conditions shall apply to all extended leaves of absence unless otherwise indicated:
 - 1. Requests for leave shall be in writing to the Director of Human Resources.
 - 2. Eligibility shall be based on a minimum of two (2) full terms of continuous employment in the Decatur District.
 - 3. Leaves shall be limited to one year effective as of the date of the leave. Further extension shall be at the discretion of the Board.
 - 4. Leaves shall be without pay.
 - 5. Salary increments shall not accrue because of<u>during</u> leave.
 - 6. Sick leave days shall not accrue because of during leave.
 - 7. Accrued benefits earned at the time the leave begins shall be retained. Accrued benefits shall be defined to mean accumulated sick leave, and placement on the

salary schedule (staff member retains full salary placement credit to which staff member was entitled at the time the leave was granted.)

- 8. Employees who are absent due to illness reasons, including those employees who subsequently receive temporary disability benefits or accidental disability benefits from District 61 affiliated retirement programs, will have their health and life insurance coverage continued at Board expense for the period they are receiving sick leave benefits from the Board and for a period up to <u>one yearsix months</u> from the date sick leave is exhausted.
- 9. Employees covered under the Board's group health insurance policy who are on authorized leave of absence for reasons other than illness, including child rearing, may continue to be covered by this insurance for a period of one year from the date the absence begings provided under COBRA, providing the employee pays the monthly premium in advance. A waiver of participation must be signed by employees going on leave who do not desire to continue their coverage, and such person must meet medical requirements of the insurance company to again qualify for insurance coverage under the Board's group policy.
- 10. The Board may request a staff member on leave to furnish a statement from a physician or a psychiatrist indicating whether or not the staff member is capable of returning to work.
- 11. Written notice of intention to either return or resign shall be given to the Director of Human Resources no less than sixty (60) days prior to the expiration of the leave. Failure to furnish such written notice shall constitute a notice of resignation.
- 12. Reemployment during the school year shall be at the discretion of the Board.
- 13. Staff members who are granted leave of absence cannot be assured of placement in the same position when they return. The best possible assignment, however, shall be made within the existing vacancies.

B. Authorized Leaves

1. Child Rearing Leave

Staff members who are expectant mothers shall upon request, be granted child rearing leave.

2. Adoption Leave/Foster Care Leave

Staff members shall, upon request, be granted a leave of absence for the adoption of a child.

3. Detached Service Leave

Staff members shall, upon request, be granted a leave of absence for detached service to work for an educational institution, a foundation, or an official government agency, or the State or National affiliate of the local Union.

4. Extended Illness Leave

Staff members whose serious health condition extends beyond the period compensated under Section VII of this document will be granted a leave of absence until such time as a physician certifies the staff member is capable of returning to work or starts receiving disability benefits under the IMRF. In no case shall extended illness leave extend beyond $\frac{\text{two }(2) \text{ one }(1)}{\text{ calendar years.}}$ Personal illness would include mental health, alcoholism, and drug abuse.

5. Family Hardship Leave

Staff members shall, upon request, be granted a leave of absence for the purpose of caring for a sick member of his/her family. A written statement of need from a physician shall accompany the request.

6. Military Leave

Staff members required to serve in the armed forces of the United States shall be granted a leave of absence without pay for the period in the service. Time spent in the armed forces shall be credited to their years of experience on the salary schedule upon their return to the school system. <u>Staff members will not suffer any seniority loss</u>.

7. Study Leave

Employees shall, upon request, be granted a leave of absence for study designed to improve their competencies.

8. General Leave

Employees may, upon request, be granted a leave of absence for such purposes as deemed appropriate by the Superintendent.

9. Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA)

All full-time and part-time employees shall be eligible for up to 12 weeks per year of FMLA for the following reasons:

- birth and care of the newborn child of the employee;
- for placement with the employee of a son or daughter for adoption or foster care;
- to care for an immediate family member (spouse, child, or parent) with a serious health condition; or
- to take medical leave when the employee is unable to work because of a serious health condition
- including any amendments.

During the family and medical leave period, the District shall continue to pay the health insurance premium set forth in the collective bargaining agreement. Employees shall not be required to use family and medical leave prior to, instead of, or simultaneously with any accrued leave. The employee shall have the option to make use of family and medical leave or any other contractual leave. The 12 months/1250 hours used in a determining eligibility will be the 12 months/1250 hours. Eligible employees may use unpaid family and medical leave, guaranteed by the Federal Family and Medical Leave Act, for up to a combined total of 12 weeks in any rolling 12-month period. Following the leave period, the employee shall be reinstated to his/her previous position or an equivalent position. All seniority, benefits, sick leave, vacation leave, etc. will continue to accrue during the time an employee is utilizing FMLA. Employees may use this leave intermittently up to 12 weeks.

ARTICLE IX COMPENSATION AND INSURANCE

A. Compensation

- 1. Educational office personnel for the Decatur Public Schools shall be paid in accordance with and work under the conditions set forth in this agreement. Wage rates of all employees covered by this agreement are set forth in Schedule A which is attached hereto and made a part hereto.
- 2. No changes or additions in existing classification or positions will be made without prior notification to the DESPA represented by the Bargaining Committee. Classifications of all educational office personnel covered by this Agreement are set forth in Schedule B of the Appendix which is attached hereto and made a part hereof.

B. Overtime

- 1. Any overtime work must be offered to the full-time secretary and not to a part-time or temporary employee. If the <u>extra over</u>time is not desired by the full-time secretary, then the part-time or temporary employee working may be offered the <u>overtime_extra time</u>.
- 2. Compensation for authorized overtime is one and one-half times the regular hourly rate shown on Schedule A. There shall be no overtime except that authorized by the immediate supervisor. No overtime shall be paid unless forty (40) hours for the week have been worked.
- 3. Overtime work performed on Saturday shall be paid at time and one-half the respective hourly rate. Overtime work performed on Sunday shall be paid at twice the respective hourly rate, only if overtime work has been performed on Saturday

(the day before) at time and one-half respective hourly rate. Overtime work will not be performed on Sunday unless it is an emergency.

- 4. Overtime work performed on a holiday as listed in Article VI-B, 1, or as declared by the Board shall be paid at the rate of time and one-half in addition to holiday pay.
- 5. Compensatory Time Off: Employees who work extra hours may receive, with the agreement of the employee and the supervisor, time off at a future date in lieu of overtime pay. Compensatory time off will be at the same rate that would be paid for overtime. The compensatory time off is one and one-half times the number of overtime hours worked.

C. Insurance

1. Full-time:

- a. Bargaining unit members, who work six (6) or more hours per day and 5 days per week will share the cost of an insurance policy covering hospital and medical costs paid for by the Board of Education. Upon the last day of the month in which termination or resignation from public school employment occurs, insurance coverage shall cease.
- b. Beginning in January 2014, employees that select single insurance will pay \$75 (\$900 annually) monthly towards health and medical insurance. Beginning in January 2014, married employees (who are both employed by the District) that select single coverage insurance each will pay the aforementioned monthly cost toward the cost of health and medical insurance. The employee-paid portion of the premium shall be sheltered under Section 125 of the Internal Revenue Code.
- c. Health and medical insurance coverage for the family of employees will be on an optional basis. The employee-paid portion of the premium shall be sheltered under Section 125 of the Internal Revenue Code.
- d. Beginning in January 2014, employees that select family coverage insurance will pay \$275 per month (\$3300 annually) toward the cost of family health and medical insurance. Beginning in January 2014, married employees (that are both employed by the District) that select family coverage insurance will pay the aforementioned monthly cost toward the cost of family health and medical insurance.

2. Part-Time:

For bargaining unit members who work between four (4) hours or more and less than six (6) hours, s and five (5) days per week, the Board of Education will pay one-half of the single premium cost. Bargaining unit members who work less than four (4) hours per day day may participate in the insurance programare not eligible for insurance benefits. , but it will be at the employee's expense. Any employee working less than four (4) hours who was hired before June 30, 2017 will be grandfathered to participate in the insurance program at her/his own expense of the full family or single insurance premium.

3. Prescription Card

<u>Prescription cards will be made available to each employee who is receiving health</u> and medical coverage through the health insurance plan. Employees should direct any questions or concerns to the District Business Office.

4. Insurance Changes

In the event the Board Insurance Committee or any other represented or unrepresented employee group recommends or accepts a change to insurance, DESPA and the Board will, upon written demand of either party, return to the table to discuss the change, whether during the term of this contract or between contracts. Any agreement reached to change the insurance arrangement will be reduced to writingIf the District Insurance Committee considers any change to insurance, during the term of this contract or between contracts, the Insurance Committee and the Board will reduce to writing any proposed changes. Decision making shall be made through 80% agreement of voting members of the District Insurance Committee. DESPA shall be entitled to one vote for each one hundred DESPA members or portion thereof. It is understood that DESPA shall have a minimum of one representative on the Insurance Committee. Any member may send a proxy to vote, and voting shall be limited to one vote per member present. Upon ratification of DEA membership, the proposed changes will be taken to the Board for approval.

- 5. The health and medical insurance coverage which is presently in effect will be on an optional basis for <u>IMRF-eligible</u> employees who retire at age fifty five (55) or thereafter with ten (10) years of service infrom the Decatur School District. Retirees who opt to participate in the employee group health insurance plan will pay the entire annual premium. Coverage will end when the retiree reaches the age of sixty-five (65).
- 6. The Board will provide for each full-time office employee life insurance in the amount of one and one half (1 ¹/₂) times their annual salary at no cost to the employee.
- 7. The Board shall indemnify and protect office employees against any loss of, damage to, or destruction of the office employee's personal property as a result of assault and/or battery committed against them while working within their scope of employment and said assault and/or battery to be without legal justification.

8. Prescription Card

Prescription cards will be made available to each employee who is receiving health and medical coverage through the health insurance plan. Employees should direct any questions or concerns to the District Business Office.

9. Flex Plan

The following options are available (during the window period<u>annually</u>, during open <u>enrollment</u>) to employees of Decatur School District No. 61. Employees should direct any questions or concerns to the District Business Office.

a. Dependent Care Assistance Plan

This plan will enable each participant to elect to receive payments of reimbursement of his/her dependent care expenses that are excludable from the participant's gross income under Section 129 of the Code.

b. Medical Reimbursement Plan

This plan enables each participant to elect to receive payments of reimbursements of his/her medical care expenses that are excludable from the participant's gross income under Section 105(b) of the Code.

c. Volunteer Dental Plan

This volunteer Dental Plan will enable each employee to participate in a group dental plan. <u>A minimum of ten (10) employees must enroll.</u>

D. Retirement Contribution

Staff members who participate in the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund will be granted an increase in gross earnings according to the following schedule:

<u>Years of District Experience</u>	<u>Percentage</u>
15-17	0.5%
18	1.0%
19	1.5%
20	2.0%
21	2.5%
22	3.0%
23	3.5%
24	4.0%
25	4.5%

ARTICLE X SUMMER EMPLOYMENT

A. Applications

Clerical staff members employed less than fifty-two (52) weeks may request consideration for summer employment by submitting a letter to the Director of Human Resources.

B. Selection

The selection of staff members for summer employment shall be on the basis of ability, skills, and years of service in the District. Clerical staff members employed less than fifty-two (52) weeks shall be given priority for summer clerical positions such as Summer School, textbook repair, summer substitutes, etc.

C. Compensation

Educational office personnel selected for clerical summer employment shall be paid at the same rate of pay as their regular employment. However, summer employment shall not increase the number of vacation days or sick leave days to which the employee is entitled.

ARTICLE XI PROMOTIONS, VACANCIES, TRANSFERS AND POSITION ELIMINATIONS

- A. Vacancies
 - 1. Information regarding educational office personnel positions which are available, either through creation or vacancy, shall be publicized to the staff by sending notices to all schools and offices with a copy to the DESPA. Notices of vacancies will include current description of work, classification of the job, and prerequisite qualifications needed for application, including specific training and experience.
 - 2. All position vacancies, including temporary positions expected to last a minimum of eight (8) consecutive weeks, shall be posted for bid. A minimum of seven (7) days shall be allowed for submission of applications.
 - 3. Vacancies occurring within the bargaining unit, including newly created positions, shall be posted within 7 days of receiving notification of intent to vacate the position. The names of all applicants for the position are to be forwarded to the appropriate administrator. Interviews shall be held within 2 weeks of the expiration of the posting period. If no applications are received for the position, it shall be reposted within 7 days. If no applications are received or no acceptable applicants apply, the employee vacating the position will not be held in said position longer than 10 working days. Within 10 working days, all Association applicants will receive written notification of the outcome of the interview.
 - <u>4.</u> Staff members may apply for any vacancy by <u>District application process</u>. <u>Such</u> <u>application shall be in writing addressed to the Director of Human Resources</u>. Other than situations covered by C. Position Eliminations, all staff members shall be

interviewed and given consideration before any applicant is appointed to the position.

- 4.<u>a.</u> A staff member who interviewed and was not selected may request a reason for the non-selection. The Director of Human Resources shall inform the staff member, in writing, of the reason.
- 5. In filling vacancies the Board agrees to give due consideration to the ability, skills, length of service and other relevant factors of all applicants.
- 6. Staff members selected to fill vacancies at either the same or different classification shall retain their years of experience.
- 7. The Association shall be involved in the process to create any new position.
- B. Involuntary Transfers
 - 1. Any staff member employed in the District may apply in writing to the Director of Human Resources requesting transfer to another building or position.
 - 2. All staff members who have requested a transfer and who are on vacation or are not on duty (during summer months) when a vacancy occurs, will be sent a copy of the notice announcing the vacancy. Notices will be sent by the Human Resources Office via United States mail to the staff member's residence.
 - 3. A staff member who has requested a transfer and is not selected to fill a specific vacancy may request a reason for the non-selection. The Director of Human Resources shall inform the staff member, in writing, of the reason.

4. The Board may transfer or reassign staff member when necessary to best utilize the staff or when it considers such transfer or reassignment to be in the best interest of the District. Before a transfer is made, the Director of Human Resources shall provide both the affected employee and the association written notice of the proposed transfer. In requesting transfers or reassignments the Board agrees to give due consideration to the ability, skills, length of service and other relevant factors of all employees. The administration shall consult with the staff member before a unilateral transfer is made. If the Board transfers or reassigns a staff member to a position falling in a lower pay grade than the one he/she presently holds, he/she shall continue to be compensated in accordance with his/her old pay grade for a period of one year or until such time as he/she may apply for and obtain a position of equal or higher pay grade, whichever comes sooner.

C. Position Eliminations

1. When buildings are closed or positions are eliminated, staff members in these buildings and positions retain a position in their classification within the following subgroups and Schedule B:

Classification A working fewer than four hours per day in a building<u>A1;</u> Classification A working four or more hours per day in a building<u>A2;</u> Classification B working 200 days per year<u>B1</u>; Classification B working 246 days per year<u>B2</u>; Classification C working 215 or 220 days per year<u>C1 or C2</u>; Classification C-<u>3</u>working 246 days per year; and Classification D.

The lay-off will occur beginning with the employee with the least amount of longevity in that classification subgroup. Bumping is respected exclusively within a Classification subgroup, and not across subgroups.

- 2. An employee displaced (but not RIF'd) as the result of a position being eliminated, that employee will be placed in a vacant position within the same classification and number of days. If no vacancy exists, the employee with the least amount of longevity in that classification subgroup will be RIF'd and the displaced employee will move into that position.
- 3. Recall will occur in the reverse order of layoff within classification and days worked.
- 4. If it becomes necessary to close buildings or eliminate positions, the employees in these buildings and positions and those employees with the least amount of service in the district will be given due notice as required by law.
- 5. If it becomes necessary to eliminate a position because government funds are no longer available, the position being one paid by the government rather than from District No. 61 funds, the two-week notice to which a staff member is entitled shall be paid from District No. 61 funds if necessary.
- D. Position Evaluation and Classification

The purpose of position evaluation is to determine the content and relative worth of each position and establish internal equity regarding compensation through the position classification plan. The position evaluation approach is a systematic and rational method for rating each position and assigning positions to responsibility groups that reflect their relative value to the District.

Procedure:

- 1. Letter requesting position review sent to Director of Human Resources.
- <u>2.</u> Position Evaluation Questionnaires sent to incumbent and incumbent's supervisor. $\frac{2}{2}$.
- 3. Completed forms returned to Director of Human Resources.
- Position Evaluation Committee meets in December and July to review requests. Committee is composed of: Director of Human Resources, <u>Director of Business</u> <u>AffairsBusiness Manager</u>, Assistant Superintendent, & President of DESPA <u>or</u> <u>DESPA designee</u> and DESPA Bargaining Committee Chair.
- 5. Committee's recommendation sent to Superintendent. Superintendent makes final decision on recommendation.

- 6. Superintendent will notify incumbents and supervisors of the decision. Notice shall be given in writing within 10 school days of the meeting.
- 7. If the request is denied, the incumbent will be given the reasons for the denial in writing.
- 8. If the request is granted, the incumbent's pay will be retroactive to December 1st or July 1st depending on the date of request.

ARTICLE XII EVALUATION

A. Evaluator

Office Personnel shall be evaluated by the immediate supervisor.

B. <u>Timeline</u>

- 1. Probationary employees shall be evaluated before ninety (90) days and again after nine (9) months.
- 2. Employees new to a position will be evaluated at the end of the current year.
- 3. After one (1) year of experience, all employees will be evaluated once every two (2) years provided no areas rated needs improvement.

C. Response

Employees shall have the opportunity to write comments of agreement or disagreement on their evaluation.

D. Conferences

Evaluation conferences shall always take place with only the two (2) parties concerned present.

E. Documentation

Any deviation above or below "Acceptable" shall be documented by citing supporting information.

F. Joint Committee

No changes to the evaluation instrument shall occur without prior agreement of the Board/DESPA joint committee on evaluations.

ARTICLE XIII MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

A. Jury Duty and Court Appearance

Any member of the bargaining unit summoned to jury duty or issued a court subpoena shall be paid his/her full salary for each working day of absence, provided that the member pays the District the jury fee or witness fee. Part-time employees would pay back a prorated amount of the jury fee. If payment is not paid within forty (40) days, it will be withheld from subsequent pay. This provision is not applicable if the staff member is a plaintiff against the School District, the Board of Education, or its representative as a result of any legal actions commenced by or on behalf of the Decatur Educational Support Personnel Association, or as the result of any legal actions arising from collective negotiations between the Decatur Educational Support Personnel Association and the Board of Education.

B. Physical Examinations

Each new employee of the Decatur Public Schools is required to have a complete physical examination at the applicant's expense. A special form for the physical examination of all new employees shall be provided by the Human Resources Office. Salary checks may be withheld until the physical examination has been completed and the report has been filed in the Human Resources Office.

C. Acceptance of Gifts

No employee of School District No. 61 may accept any gift (except advertising novelties of nominal value) or redeemable coupons or stamps from any vendor of supplies or services to the School District. In the event any such gift is received by an employee, it shall be reported immediately to the Superintendent of Schools who shall cause the gift or redeemable coupons or stamps to be returned to the vendor, notify the vendor of this policy, and by written report inform the Board of this action taken. All vendors shall be immediately notified of this policy. Employees of School District No. 61 are required to comply with the Illinois State Officials and Employees Ethics Act, 5 ILCS 430/1-1 et seq., and Illinois Gift Ban, 5 ILCS 430/10-10 et seq.

D. In-service and -Training

<u>1.</u> Each employee shall receive two (2) days per year to attend workshops without loss of pay.

<u>2.</u> There shall be one (1) day annually during which professional development is provided for clerical employees.

<u>3.</u>___The District shall <u>make support no less than eight</u> (8) hours of on-site <u>mentoring</u> available training to new and newly promoted employees to be provided by a DESPA <u>member and/or district departments</u>, scheduled at the discretion of both employees' supervisors.

E. <u>Freedom to Request a Conference</u>

Any employee's request for conferences or hearings at any higher level shall not be considered by anyone as a reflection upon the employee. A reasonable use of this procedure is encouraged to the end that all employees, certificated or otherwise, shall enjoy freedom of thought and freedom of communication concerning their profession and the work of the school system, and to the end that ideas may flourish and creative thought be stimulated.

F. Definition of Probationary, Full-Time, Part-Time, Short Term Employees

- 1. <u>Probationary employee</u>: All new employees shall be considered as probationary employees for the first ninety (90) calendar days of their employment. The Board, through its appointed representative, shall have the right to discharge any employee in such status and no grievance shall arise therefrom.
- 2. <u>A full-time employee</u> is one who works eight (8) hours daily and is employed the number of weeks required for his/her position as specified in Schedule B, Classification of Educational Office Personnel. Full-time employees are eligible for full vacation, holiday, sick leave, and insurance benefits provided by the Board as specified in this Agreement.
- 3. <u>A part-time employee</u> is one who works less than full time and/or is employed on a continuous basis for the number of weeks required for his/her position as specified on Schedule B.

Part-time employees who work twenty (20) hours or more per week are eligible for vacation, sick leave, and holiday benefits calculated on a basis that is consistent with their daily earnings. Part-time employees who work six (6) or more hours per day are entitled to have the Board pay the premium to the extent identified in this agreement in Article IX.C. on their health insurance. Employees who work twenty (20) hours or more per week but less than thirty (30) hours per week are entitled to have the Board pay one-half of the premium on their health insurance if they pay the remaining one-half.

Part-time employees who work less than twenty (20) hours per week are not eligible for vacation, sick leave, holiday or insurance benefits.

4. <u>A short-term employee</u> may or may not work eight (8) hours daily but is not employed on a continuous basis or for the number of weeks required for the position. Short-term employees are not eligible for vacation, holidays, insurance benefits or sick leave.

G. Administering Medication

Employees shall not be required to administer medication; however, employees shall comply with Board policy, asthma episode emergency response protocol, and students' asthma action plans.-

ARTICLE XIV LIMITATIONS

- A. The Decatur Educational Support Personnel Association and the individual members of the bargaining unit represented by the DESPA agree not to strike.
- B. The Decatur Educational Support Personnel Association and the individual members of the bargaining unit represented by the DESPA agree that they, will not during working hours engage in or encourage or support any strike, slowdown, or other concerted refusal to render full and complete services to the Board.
- C. This Agreement shall not supersede any existing or future laws of the State or Federal Government as they affect the legal operation of the school system by the Board. If any portion of this Agreement is in violation of any law or is declared invalid by any court or competent jurisdiction, or shall become inoperative because of any State or Federal law, that portion in disagreement shall be considered null and void, but the remaining portions of this Agreement shall continue in full force until the prescribed termination date.
- D. Except as expressly provided otherwise in this Agreement, the determination and administration of school policy, the operation and management of the schools, and the employment, termination, and direction of employees are vested exclusively in the Board of Education, and that the Board is the legally constituted body for that purpose.
- E. This Agreement shall create no personal or individual contractual obligation or liability on the part of any member or members of the Board of Education.
- F. Waivers If any waivers become subject to bargaining, at that time we will schedule a meeting to bargain.

ARTICLE XV MODIFICATION AND WAIVER

This Agreement may not be modified in whole or in part by the parties except by an instrument in writing duly executed by both parties and no departure from a provision of this Agreement by either party, or by their officers, agents, or representatives, or by members of the negotiating committees, shall be construed to constitute a continuing waiver of the right to enforce such provisions.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereunto set their hands and

seals this ______ day of ______, 2013.

DECATUR EDUCATIONAL SUPPORT PERSONNEL ASSOCIATION

Bargaining Committee Member _____

President _____

BOARD OF EDUCATION, DISTRICT NO. 61

President _____

Secretary _____

APPENDIX

4-year agreement, retroactive to, beginning July 17, 20173 and ending June 30, 202117.

Schedule to be adjusted to reflect a 4-year agreement. \$0.25 will be added to each cell of the schedule each year of the agreement.

- 1. An employee hired by October 1 of the year preceding each year of this agreement shall advance one step. This language shall not read to require step movement outside the 4 years of this agreement unless the parties agree to such movement. Past practice is expressly acknowledged by the parties to be that step movement is not required unless agreed at the conclusion of each contract year, and this language is intended as an express waiver of any status quo which would be contrary to the above.
- 2. Prior Work Experience Credit

Prior to employment with the District, applicants with prior work experience shall be awarded such work experience if it is related to position duties and responsibilities noted in the relevant job description and verifiable with a copy of a prior job description and by a prior employer (if possible).

Any such work experience must have been within the ten year period immediately prior to proposed employment in the District. New applicants may be granted placement up to step 3 if it meets the provisions of this document. Prior experience above step 3 shall be awarded only with mutual agreement of <u>both partiesDirector of Human Resources</u> and the DESPA President or DESPA Designee.

Any employee returning from an extended leave of absence will retain full salary placement credit as defined in Article VIII – Extended Leaves of Absence A7.

Any former employee whose prior job was in Schedule B of the contract and is reemployed shall be granted full credit for prior District 61 employment.

- 3. If a substitute secretary is on a continuous assignment for thirty (30) working days, as of the thirty-first (31st) day, the pay will be increased to the starting rate of the regular secretary's classification retroactive to the first day worked. Any part-time secretary substituting for a full-time secretary should do so at his/her (part-time) secretary's rate.
- 4.3. Educational office personnel selected for summer employment shall be paid at the same rate of pay as their regular employment. However, summer employment shall not increase the number of vacation days or sick leave days to which the employee is entitled. Persons hired for summer employment who are not regular District 61 employees shall be paid the current Federal Minimum Wage.

5.4. The X-step is intended as a one (1) year payment to qualifying retiring employees in recognition of the many years of faithful and dedicated service the employee has given to education in general and to the School District and its students. In order to qualify for an X-step salary rate for the final year of employment, an employee must be eligible for IMRF retirement criteria and have been employed for at least 8-15 years (\$750.00), 16-20 years (\$1250.00), 21-25 years (1750.00), and 26+ years (\$3250.00) with the Decatur Public School District 61. No later than six (6) months prior to the anticipated retirement date, employees must have notified the Director of Human Resources in writing that he/she will be retiring upon the specified date. To stay within the IMRF 125% Rule, a payment cycle will be established with payroll.

Schedule A				
<u>2017-18</u>	A	B	<u>C</u>	<u>D</u>
<u>1</u>	<u>14.93</u>	<u>15.52</u>	16.12	<u>16.71</u>
<u>2</u>	<u>15.18</u>	15.77	16.37	<u>16.96</u>
<u>3</u>	<u>15.43</u>	16.02	16.62	17.21
<u>4</u>	15.68	16.27	16.87	<u>17.46</u>
<u>5</u>	<u>15.93</u>	<u>16.52</u>	<u>17.12</u>	<u>17.71</u>
<u>6</u>	<u>16.18</u>	16.77	17.37	<u>17.96</u>
<u>7</u>	<u>16.43</u>	17.02	17.62	<u>18.21</u>

<u>8</u>	<u>16.68</u>	<u>17.27</u>	<u>17.87</u>	<u>18.46</u>
<u>9</u>	<u>16.93</u>	<u>17.52</u>	<u>18.12</u>	<u>18.71</u>
<u>10</u>	<u>17.18</u>	<u>17.77</u>	<u>18.37</u>	<u>18.96</u>
<u>11</u>	<u>17.43</u>	<u>18.02</u>	<u>18.62</u>	<u>19.21</u>
<u>12</u>	<u>17.68</u>	<u>18.27</u>	<u>18.87</u>	<u>19.46</u>
<u>13</u>	<u>17.93</u>	<u>18.52</u>	<u>19.12</u>	<u>19.71</u>
<u>14</u>	<u>18.18</u>	<u>18.77</u>	<u>19.37</u>	<u>19.96</u>
<u>15</u>	<u>18.43</u>	<u>19.02</u>	<u>19.62</u>	<u>20.21</u>
<u>16</u>	<u>18.68</u>	<u>19.27</u>	<u>19.87</u>	20.46
<u>17</u>	<u>18.93</u>	<u>19.52</u>	<u>20.12</u>	<u>20.71</u>
<u>18</u>	<u>19.18</u>	<u>19.77</u>	20.37	<u>20.96</u>
<u>19</u>	<u>19.43</u>	20.02	20.62	21.21
<u>20</u>	<u>19.68</u>	20.27	20.87	<u>21.46</u>
<u>21</u>	<u>19.93</u>	20.52	21.12	<u>21.71</u>
<u>22</u>	20.18	20.77	21.37	<u>21.96</u>
<u>23</u>	20.43	21.02	21.62	22.21
<u>24</u>	20.68	21.27	21.87	22.46
<u>25</u>	20.93	21.52	22.12	22.71
<u>26</u>	21.18	21.77	22.37	22.96
<u>27</u>	21.43	22.02	22.62	23.21
<u>28</u>	21.68	22.27	22.87	23.46
<u>29</u>	21.93	22.52	23.12	23.71
<u>30</u>	22.18	22.77	23.37	23.96
<u>31</u>	22.43	23.02	23.62	24.21
<u>32</u>	22.68	23.27	23.87	24.46
<u>33</u>	22.93	23.52	24.12	<u>24.71</u>
<u>34</u>	23.18	23.77	24.37	24.96
<u>35</u>	23.43	24.02	24.62	25.21
<u>36</u>	23.68	24.27	24.87	25.46
<u>37</u>	23.93	24.52	25.12	25.71
<u>38</u>	24.18	24.77	25.37	25.96
<u>39</u>	24.43	25.02	25.62	26.21
40	24.68	25.27	25.87	26.46
<u>41</u>	24.93	25.52	26.12	26.71
42	25.18	25.77	26.37	26.96
				Schedule .
0.25	-		2 0	13/2014

		Schedule	A	
0.25	-	2013/2014	-	-
-	A	₿	ę	Ð
1	13.98	14.57	15.17	15.76
2	14.23	14.82	15.42	16.01
3	14.48	15.07	15.66	16.26
4	14.73	15.32	15.91	16.51
5	14.98	15.57	16.16	16.76
6	15.23	15.82	16.41	17.01

-	Schedule A	-		
40	23.71	<u>24.31</u>	24.90	25.49
39	23.46	24.06	24.65	25.24
38	23.21	23.81	24.40	24.99
37	22.96	23.56	24.15	<u>24.75</u>
36	22.71	23.31	23.90	<u>24.50</u>
35	22.46	23.06	23.65	24.25
34	22.21	22.80	23.40	24.00
33	21.96	22.51	23.15	23.75
32	21.40	<u>22.31</u>	22.00	23.50
<u>31</u>	21.22	22.06	22.65	23.25
30	21.22	21.80	22.40	23.00
29	20.97	21.51	22.15	22.75
28	20.72	21.31	21.90	22.50
27	20.47	21.06	21.65	22.25
26	20.22	20.81	21.41	22.00
25	<u>19.97</u>	20.51	21.16	21.75
24	<u>19.72</u>	<u>20.31</u>	20.91	21.50
23	<u>19.47</u>	20.06	20.66	21.25
 22	<u>19.22</u>	19.81	20.41	21.00
21	<u>18.97</u>	19.56	20.16	20.75
20	18.72	19.31	<u>19.91</u>	20.50
19	18.47	19.06	19.66	20.25
18	18.22	<u>18.81</u>	19.41	20.00
17	17.97	18.56	19.16	19.75
16	17.72	18.32	18.91	19.50
<u>15</u>	17.47	<u>18.07</u>	18.66	<u>19.25</u>
14	17.22	17.82	18.41	<u>19.00</u>
13	16.97	17.57	18.16	18.76
 12	<u>16.72</u>	<u>17.32</u>	17.91	<u>18.51</u>
11	16.47	17.07	17.66	<u>18.26</u>
10	16.22	16.82	17.41	18.01
9	<u>15.97</u>	16.57	17.16	17.76
7 8	<u>15.72</u>	16.32	16.66 16.91	17.26 17.51

Schedule A					
<u>2018-19</u>	<u>A</u>	<u>B</u>	<u>C</u>	D	
<u>1</u>	15.14	15.73	16.33	16.92	
<u>2</u>	<u>15.39</u>	15.98	16.58	17.17	
<u>3</u>	15.64	16.23	16.83	17.42	
<u>4</u>	15.89	16.48	17.08	17.67	
<u>5</u>	16.14	16.73	17.33	17.92	
<u>6</u>	16.39	16.98	17.58	18.17	
<u>7</u>	16.64	17.23	17.83	18.42	

<u>8</u>	<u>16.89</u>	17.48	18.08	<u>18.67</u>
<u>9</u>	17.14	17.73	18.33	<u>18.92</u>
<u>10</u>	17.39	<u>17.98</u>	18.58	<u>19.17</u>
<u>11</u>	17.64	18.23	18.83	<u>19.42</u>
<u>12</u>	17.89	18.48	19.08	19.67
<u>13</u>	18.14	<u>18.73</u>	<u>19.33</u>	<u>19.92</u>
<u>14</u>	<u>18.39</u>	<u>18.98</u>	<u>19.58</u>	20.17
<u>15</u>	18.64	<u>19.23</u>	19.83	20.42
<u>16</u>	18.89	<u>19.48</u>	20.08	20.67
<u>17</u>	<u>19.14</u>	<u>19.73</u>	20.33	20.92
<u>18</u>	<u>19.39</u>	<u>19.98</u>	20.58	21.17
<u>19</u>	19.64	20.23	20.83	21.42
<u>20</u>	<u>19.89</u>	20.48	21.08	21.67
<u>21</u>	20.14	20.73	21.33	21.92
<u>22</u>	20.39	20.98	21.58	22.17
<u>23</u>	20.64	21.23	21.83	22.42
<u>24</u>	20.89	21.48	22.08	22.67
<u>25</u>	21.14	21.73	22.33	22.92
<u>26</u>	21.39	21.98	22.58	23.17
<u>27</u>	21.64	22.23	22.83	23.42
<u>28</u>	21.89	22.48	23.08	23.67
<u>29</u>	22.14	22.73	23.33	23.92
<u>30</u>	22.39	22.98	23.58	24.17
<u>31</u>	22.64	23.23	23.83	24.42
<u>32</u>	22.89	23.48	24.08	24.67
<u>33</u>	23.14	23.73	24.33	24.92
<u>34</u>	23.39	23.98	24.58	25.17
<u>35</u>	23.64	24.23	24.83	25.42
<u>36</u>	23.89	24.48	25.08	25.67
<u>37</u>	24.14	24.73	25.33	25.92
<u>38</u>	24.39	24.98	25.58	26.17
<u>39</u>	24.64	25.23	25.83	26.42
40	24.89	25.48	26.08	26.67
41	25.14	25.73	26.33	26.92
42	25.39	25.98	26.58	27.17
	I			Schedule
1				

		Schedule	A	
0.25	-	2014/2015	-	-
-	A	₽	÷	Ð
1	14.23	14.82	15.42	16.01
2	14.48	15.07	15.67	16.26
3	14.73	15.32	15.91	16.51
4	14.98	15.57	16.16	16.76
5	15.23	15.82	16.41	17.01
6	15.48	16.07	16.66	17.26

15.97 16.22 16.47 16.72 16.97 17.22 17.47 17.72 17.97 18.22 18.47 18.97 19.22 19.47 19.72 19.72 19.97 20.22 20.22	$ \begin{array}{r} 16.57\\ 16.82\\ 17.07\\ 17.32\\ 17.57\\ 17.57\\ 17.82\\ 18.07\\ 18.32\\ 18.57\\ 18.81\\ 19.06\\ 19.31\\ 19.56\\ 19.81\\ 20.06\\ 20.31\\ 20.56\\ \end{array} $	$ \begin{array}{r} 17.16\\ 17.41\\ 17.66\\ 17.91\\ 18.16\\ 18.41\\ 18.66\\ 18.91\\ 19.16\\ 19.41\\ 19.66\\ 19.91\\ 20.16\\ 20.41\\ 20.66\\ 20.91\\ 21.16\\ \end{array} $	$ \begin{array}{r} 17.76 \\ 18.01 \\ 18.26 \\ 18.51 \\ 18.76 \\ 19.01 \\ 19.25 \\ 19.50 \\ 19.75 \\ 20.00 \\ 20.25 \\ 20.50 \\ 20.75 \\ 21.50 \\ 21.25 \\ 21.50 \\ 21.75 \\ \end{array} $
16.47 16.72 16.97 17.22 17.47 17.72 17.97 18.22 18.47 18.97 19.22 19.47 19.72 19.97	$ \begin{array}{r} \frac{17.07}{17.32} \\ \frac{17.32}{17.57} \\ \frac{17.82}{18.07} \\ \frac{18.07}{18.32} \\ \frac{18.57}{18.81} \\ \frac{19.06}{19.31} \\ \frac{19.31}{19.56} \\ \frac{19.81}{20.06} \\ \frac{20.31}{20.56} \\ \end{array} $	$ \begin{array}{r} \frac{17.66}{17.91} \\ \frac{17.91}{18.16} \\ \frac{18.41}{18.66} \\ \frac{18.91}{19.16} \\ \frac{19.41}{19.66} \\ \frac{19.91}{20.16} \\ \frac{20.41}{20.66} \\ \frac{20.91}{20.91} \\ \end{array} $	$ \begin{array}{r} \frac{18.26}{18.51} \\ \frac{18.51}{18.76} \\ \frac{19.01}{19.25} \\ \frac{19.50}{19.50} \\ \frac{19.75}{20.00} \\ \frac{20.25}{20.50} \\ \frac{20.75}{21.00} \\ \frac{21.25}{21.50} \\ \end{array} $
16.72 16.97 17.22 17.47 17.72 17.97 18.22 18.47 18.97 19.22 19.47 19.72 19.97	$ \begin{array}{r} \frac{17.32}{17.57} \\ \frac{17.57}{17.82} \\ \frac{18.07}{18.32} \\ \frac{18.57}{18.81} \\ \frac{19.06}{19.31} \\ \frac{19.56}{19.81} \\ \frac{20.06}{20.31} \\ \frac{20.56}{20.56} \\ \end{array} $	$ \begin{array}{r} \frac{17.91}{18.16} \\ \frac{18.41}{18.66} \\ \frac{18.91}{19.16} \\ \frac{19.41}{19.66} \\ \frac{19.91}{20.16} \\ \frac{20.41}{20.66} \\ \frac{20.91}{20.91} \end{array} $	$ \begin{array}{r} \frac{18.51}{18.76} \\ \frac{19.01}{19.25} \\ \frac{19.25}{19.50} \\ \frac{19.75}{20.00} \\ 20.25 \\ 20.50 \\ 20.75 \\ 21.00 \\ 21.25 \\ 21.50 \\ \end{array} $
16.97 17.22 17.47 17.72 17.97 18.22 18.47 18.72 18.97 19.22 19.47 19.72 19.97	$ \begin{array}{r} \frac{17.57}{17.82} \\ \frac{18.07}{18.32} \\ \frac{18.57}{18.81} \\ \frac{19.06}{19.31} \\ \frac{19.56}{19.81} \\ \frac{20.06}{20.31} \\ \frac{20.56}{19.56} \\ \end{array} $	$ \begin{array}{r} \frac{18.16}{18.41} \\ \frac{18.66}{18.91} \\ \frac{19.16}{19.41} \\ \frac{19.66}{19.91} \\ 20.16 \\ 20.41 \\ \frac{20.66}{20.91} \\ \end{array} $	$ \begin{array}{r} \frac{18.76}{19.01} \\ \frac{19.25}{19.50} \\ \frac{19.50}{20.00} \\ \frac{20.25}{20.50} \\ \frac{20.75}{21.00} \\ \frac{21.25}{21.50} \end{array} $
17.22 17.47 17.72 17.97 18.22 18.47 18.72 18.97 19.22 19.47 19.72 19.97	$ \begin{array}{r} \frac{17.82}{18.07} \\ \frac{18.32}{18.57} \\ \frac{18.57}{18.81} \\ \frac{19.06}{19.31} \\ \frac{19.56}{19.81} \\ \frac{20.06}{20.31} \\ \frac{20.56}{20.56} \end{array} $	$ \begin{array}{r} \frac{18.41}{18.66} \\ \frac{18.91}{19.16} \\ \frac{19.16}{19.41} \\ \frac{19.66}{19.91} \\ 20.16 \\ 20.41 \\ 20.66 \\ 20.91 \\ \end{array} $	$ \begin{array}{r} \frac{19.01}{19.25} \\ \frac{19.50}{19.75} \\ 20.00 \\ 20.25 \\ 20.50 \\ 20.75 \\ 21.00 \\ 21.25 \\ 21.50 \\ \end{array} $
17.47 17.72 17.97 18.22 18.47 18.72 18.97 19.22 19.47 19.72 19.97	$ \begin{array}{r} \frac{18.07}{18.32} \\ \frac{18.57}{18.81} \\ \frac{19.06}{19.31} \\ \frac{19.56}{19.81} \\ \frac{20.06}{20.31} \\ \frac{20.56}{20.56} \end{array} $	$ \begin{array}{r} \frac{18.66}{18.91} \\ \frac{19.16}{19.41} \\ \frac{19.41}{19.66} \\ \frac{19.91}{20.16} \\ 20.41 \\ \frac{20.66}{20.91} \\ \end{array} $	$ \begin{array}{r} \frac{19.25}{19.50} \\ \frac{19.75}{20.00} \\ 20.25 \\ 20.50 \\ 20.75 \\ 21.00 \\ 21.25 \\ 21.50 \\ \end{array} $
17.72 17.97 18.22 18.47 18.72 18.97 19.22 19.47 19.72 19.97	18.32 18.57 18.81 19.06 19.31 19.56 19.81 20.06 20.31 20.56	$ \begin{array}{r} \frac{18.91}{19.16} \\ \frac{19.41}{19.66} \\ \frac{19.91}{20.16} \\ 20.41 \\ \frac{20.66}{20.91} \\ \end{array} $	$ \begin{array}{r} \frac{19.50}{19.75} \\ \underline{20.00} \\ \underline{20.25} \\ \underline{20.50} \\ \underline{20.75} \\ \underline{21.00} \\ \underline{21.25} \\ \underline{21.50} \\ \end{array} $
17.97 18.22 18.47 18.72 18.97 19.22 19.47 19.72 19.72 19.97	18.57 18.81 19.06 19.31 19.56 19.81 20.06 20.31 20.56	19.16 19.41 19.66 19.91 20.16 20.41 20.66 20.91	$ \begin{array}{r} \frac{19.75}{20.00} \\ \underline{20.25} \\ \underline{20.50} \\ \underline{20.75} \\ \underline{21.00} \\ \underline{21.25} \\ \underline{21.50} \\ \end{array} $
18.22 18.47 18.72 18.97 19.22 19.47 19.72 19.97	18.81 19.06 19.31 19.56 19.81 20.06 20.31 20.56	19.41 19.66 19.91 20.16 20.41 20.66 20.91	20.00 20.25 20.50 20.75 21.00 21.25 21.50
18.47 18.72 18.97 19.22 19.47 19.72 19.97	19.06 19.31 19.56 19.81 20.06 20.31 20.56	19.66 19.91 20.16 20.41 20.66 20.91	20.25 20.50 20.75 21.00 21.25 21.50
18.72 18.97 19.22 19.47 19.72 19.97	19.31 19.56 19.81 20.06 20.31 20.56	19.91 20.16 20.41 20.66 20.91	20.50 20.75 21.00 21.25 21.50
18.97 19.22 19.47 19.72 19.97	19.56 19.81 20.06 20.31 20.56	20.16 20.41 20.66 20.91	20.75 21.00 21.25 21.50
19.22 19.47 19.72 19.97	19.81 20.06 20.31 20.56	20.41 20.66 20.91	21.00 21.25 21.50
19.47 19.72 19.97	20.06 20.31 20.56	20.66 20.91	21.25 21.50
19.72 19.97	20.31 20.56	20.91	21.50
19.97	20.56		
		21.16	21.75
20.22			
	20.81	21.41	22.00
20.47	21.06	21.66	22.25
20.72	21.31	21.90	22.50
20.97	21.56	22.15	22.75
<u>21.22</u>	21.81	22.40	23.00
21.47	22.06	22.65	23.25
21.71	22.31	22.90	23.50
21.96	22.56	23.15	23.75
22.21	22.81	23.40	24.00
22.46	23.06	23.65	24.25
22.71	23.31	23.90	24.50
22.96	23.56	24.15	24.75
23.21	23.81	24.40	25.00
23.46	24.06	24.65	25.24
23.71	24.31	24.90	25.49
23.96	24.56	25.15	25.74
	21.96 22.21 22.46 22.71 22.96 23.21 23.46 23.71 23.71 23.71 23.96	21.9622.5622.2122.8122.4623.0622.7123.3122.9623.5623.2123.8123.4624.0623.7124.3123.9624.56	21.9622.5623.1522.2122.8123.4022.4623.0623.6522.7123.3123.9022.9623.5624.1523.2123.8124.4023.4624.0624.6523.7124.3124.90

Schedule A					
<u>2019-20</u>	<u>A</u>	<u>B</u>	<u>C</u>	D	
<u>1</u>	15.36	<u>15.95</u>	16.55	17.14	
<u>2</u>	15.61	16.20	16.80	17.39	
<u>3</u>	15.86	16.45	17.05	17.64	
<u>4</u>	16.11	16.70	17.30	17.89	
<u>5</u>	16.36	16.95	17.55	18.14	
<u>6</u>	16.61	17.20	17.80	18.39	
<u>7</u>	16.86	17.45	18.05	18.64	

<u>8</u>	<u>17.11</u>	17.70	18.30	18.89
<u>9</u>	17.36	17.95	18.55	<u>19.14</u>
<u>10</u>	<u>17.61</u>	18.20	18.80	<u>19.39</u>
<u>11</u>	17.86	18.45	19.05	<u>19.64</u>
<u>12</u>	<u>18.11</u>	18.70	19.30	<u>19.89</u>
<u>13</u>	18.36	<u>18.95</u>	<u>19.55</u>	20.14
<u>14</u>	<u>18.61</u>	<u>19.20</u>	19.80	20.39
<u>15</u>	<u>18.86</u>	<u>19.45</u>	20.05	20.64
<u>16</u>	<u>19.11</u>	<u>19.70</u>	20.30	20.89
<u>17</u>	<u>19.36</u>	<u>19.95</u>	20.55	21.14
<u>18</u>	<u>19.61</u>	20.20	20.80	21.39
<u>19</u>	<u>19.86</u>	20.45	21.05	21.64
<u>20</u>	20.11	20.70	21.30	21.89
<u>21</u>	20.36	20.95	21.55	22.14
<u>22</u>	20.61	21.20	21.80	22.39
<u>23</u>	20.86	21.45	22.05	22.64
<u>24</u>	21.11	21.70	22.30	22.89
<u>25</u>	21.36	21.95	22.55	23.14
<u>26</u>	21.61	22.20	22.80	23.39
<u>27</u>	21.86	22.45	23.05	23.64
<u>28</u>	22.11	22.70	23.30	23.89
<u>29</u>	22.36	<u>22.95</u>	23.55	24.14
<u>30</u>	22.61	23.20	23.80	24.39
<u>31</u>	22.86	23.45	24.05	24.64
<u>32</u>	23.11	23.70	<u>24.30</u>	24.89
<u>33</u>	23.36	<u>23.95</u>	24.55	25.14
<u>34</u>	23.61	<u>24.20</u>	<u>24.80</u>	25.39
<u>35</u>	23.86	<u>24.45</u>	25.05	25.64
<u>36</u>	24.11	24.70	25.30	25.89
<u>37</u>	24.36	<u>24.95</u>	<u>25.55</u>	26.14
<u>38</u>	<u>24.61</u>	25.20	25.80	<u>26.39</u>
<u>39</u>	24.86	<u>25.45</u>	26.05	26.64
<u>40</u>	25.11	25.70	26.30	26.89
<u>41</u>	25.36	<u>25.95</u>	26.55	27.14
<u>42</u>	25.61	26.20	26.80	27.39
				Schedule

	Schedule A					
0.25	-	2015/2016	-	-		
-	A	₽	e	Φ		
1	14.48	15.07	15.67	16.26		
2	14.73	15.32	15.92	16.51		
3	14.98	15.57	16.16	16.76		
4	15.23	15.82	16.41	17.01		
5	15.48	16.07	16.66	17.26		
6	15.73	16.32	16.91	17.51		

	A B	C D		
	Schedule A			
40	24.21	24.81	25.40	25.99
39	23.96	24.56	25.15	25.74
38	23.71	24.31	24.90	25.49
37	23.46	24.06	24.65	25.25
36	23.21	23.81	24.40	25.00
35	22.96	23.56	24.15	24.75
34	22.71	23.31	23.90	24.50
33	22.46	23.06	23.65	24.25
32	22.21	22.81	23.40	24.00
31	21.96	22.56	23.15	23.75
30	21.72	22.31	22.90	23.50
29	21.47	22.06	22.65	23.25
28	21.22	21.81	22.40	23.00
27	20.97	21.56	22.15	22.75
26	20.72	21.31	21.91	22.50
25	20.47	21.06	21.66	22.25
2 4	20.22	20.81	21.41	22.00
23	19.97	20.56	21.16	21.75
22	19.72	20.31	20.91	21.50
21	19.47	20.06	20.66	21.25
20	19.22	19.81	20.41	21.00
19	18.97	19.56	20.16	20.75
18	18.72	19.31	19.91	20.50
17	18.47	19.06	19.66	20.25
16	18.22	18.82	19.41	20.00
15	17.97	18.57	19.16	19.75
14	17.72	<u>18.32</u>	<u>18.91</u>	19.50
13	17.47	18.07	18.66	19.26
12	17.22	17.82	18.41	19.01
11	16.97	17.57	18.16	18.76
10	16.72	17.32	17.91	18.51
9	16.47	17.07	17.66	18.26
8	16.22	16.82	17.41	18.01

Schedule A						
<u>2020-21</u>	<u>A</u>	<u>B</u>	<u>C</u>	D		
<u>1</u>	15.59	16.18	16.78	17.37		
<u>2</u>	15.84	16.43	17.03	17.62		
<u>3</u>	16.09	16.68	17.28	17.87		
<u>4</u>	16.34	16.93	17.53	18.12		
<u>5</u>	16.59	17.18	17.78	18.37		
<u>6</u>	16.84	17.43	18.03	18.62		
<u>7</u>	17.09	17.68	18.28	18.87		

<u>8</u>	<u>17.34</u>	<u>17.93</u>	<u>18.53</u>	<u>19.12</u>
<u>9</u>	17.59	<u>18.18</u>	18.78	19.37
<u>10</u>	17.84	<u>18.43</u>	19.03	<u>19.62</u>
<u>11</u>	18.09	18.68	19.28	<u>19.87</u>
<u>12</u>	18.34	<u>18.93</u>	19.53	20.12
<u>13</u>	18.59	<u>19.18</u>	<u>19.78</u>	20.37
<u>14</u>	18.84	<u>19.43</u>	20.03	20.62
<u>15</u>	19.09	19.68	20.28	20.87
<u>16</u>	<u>19.34</u>	<u>19.93</u>	20.53	<u>21.12</u>
<u>17</u>	<u>19.59</u>	<u>20.18</u>	20.78	21.37
<u>18</u>	19.84	20.43	21.03	21.62
<u>19</u>	20.09	20.68	<u>21.28</u>	<u>21.87</u>
<u>20</u>	<u>20.34</u>	<u>20.93</u>	<u>21.53</u>	22.12
<u>21</u>	<u>20.59</u>	<u>21.18</u>	<u>21.78</u>	22.37
<u>22</u>	20.84	<u>21.43</u>	22.03	22.62
<u>23</u>	<u>21.09</u>	<u>21.68</u>	22.28	22.87
<u>24</u>	<u>21.34</u>	<u>21.93</u>	22.53	23.12
<u>25</u>	<u>21.59</u>	<u>22.18</u>	22.78	23.37
<u>26</u>	<u>21.84</u>	<u>22.43</u>	23.03	23.62
<u>27</u>	22.09	22.68	23.28	23.87
<u>28</u>	<u>22.34</u>	<u>22.93</u>	<u>23.53</u>	<u>24.12</u>
<u>29</u>	<u>22.59</u>	<u>23.18</u>	23.78	24.37
<u>30</u>	22.84	23.43	24.03	24.62
<u>31</u>	23.09	23.68	24.28	24.87
<u>32</u>	23.34	<u>23.93</u>	24.53	25.12
<u>33</u>	23.59	24.18	24.78	25.37
<u>34</u>	23.84	24.43	25.03	25.62
<u>35</u>	24.09	24.68	25.28	25.87
<u>36</u>	24.34	24.93	25.53	26.12
<u>37</u>	24.59	25.18	25.78	26.37
<u>38</u>	24.84	25.43	26.03	26.62
<u>39</u>	25.09	25.68	26.28	26.87
<u>40</u>	25.34	<u>25.93</u>	26.53	27.12
<u>41</u>	25.59	26.18	26.78	27.37
<u>42</u>	25.84	26.43	27.03	27.62
r				Schedule

Schedule A					
0.25	-	2017/2018	-	-	
-	A	₿	÷	Ð	
1	14.73	15.32	15.92	16.51	
2	14.98	15.57	16.17	16.76	
3	15.23	15.82	16.41	17.01	
4	15.48	16.07	16.66	17.26	
5	15.73	16.32	16.91	17.51	
6	15.98	16.57	17.16	17.76	

7	16.22	16.82	17.41	18.01
8	16.47	17.07	17.66	18.26
9	16.72	17.32	17.91	18.51
10	16.97	17.57		
11	17.22	17.82	18.41	19.01
12	17.47	18.07	18.66	19.26
13	17.72	18.32	18.91	19.51
1 4	17.97	18.57	19.16	19.75
15	<u>18.22</u>	18.82	19.41	20.00
16	18.47	19.07	19.66	20.25
17	<u>18.72</u>	19.31	19.91	20.50
18	18.97	19.56	20.16	20.75
19	19.22	19.81	20.41	21.00
20	19.47	20.06	20.66	21.25
21	19.72	20.31	20.91	21.50
22	19.97	20.56	21.16	21.75
23	20.22	20.81	21.41	22.00
2 4	20.47	21.06	21.66	22.25
25	20.72	21.31	21.91	22.50
26	20.97	21.56	22.16	22.75
27	21.22	21.81	22.40	23.00
28	21.47	22.06	22.65	23.25
29	21.72	22.31	22.90	23.50
30	21.97	22.56	23.15	23.75
31	22.21	22.81	23.40	24.00
32	22.46	23.06	23.65	24.25
33	22.71	23.31	23.90	24.50
34	22.96	23.56	24.15	24.75
35	23.21	23.81	24.40	25.00
36	23.46	24.06	24.65	25.25
37	23.71	24.31	24.90	25.50
38	23.96	24.56	25.15	25.74
<u>39</u>	24.21	24.81	25.40	25.99
40	24.46	25.06	25.65	26.24

Schedule B

A B C D	PAID DAYS (Including benefit days)	EXPLANATION ¹	POSITION
A1	180 Days Less Than 4hrs per day	Work same days as teachers; Do Not Work Emergency Days	² Elementary Secretary I

¹ Days before and days after are generally stated, and subject to scheduling at discretion of District and with mutual agreement with DESPA. If no mutual agreement is reached, specific language of the contract as above will apply

² K-6th Part-Time Secretarial Hours: 0-349 Pupils/2 hours per day & 350 or above/3 hours per day

	192 or 193 (dependent upon	Work same days as teachers; Do Not Work	³ K-8 Elementary Secretary
A2	Memorial Day) Days Equal to or	Emergency Days	Main Office Receptionist-High Schools
П4	Greater Than 4hrs per day	Energency Days	⁴ Middle School Clerk Typist
	213 Days – 8hrs per day	Work same days as teachers; 2 Weeks	Library Secretary Itinerant
B1	215 Days – onis per day	before school; 2 Weeks after-School; Work	Pre-Kindergarten Grant Secretary
ы		Emergency Days	Small Learning Communities Secretary
	262, 261, or 260 Days-8hrs per day	Work Emergency Days	District Receptionist/Microfilm Clerk
	202, 201, 01 200 Days-onis per day	work Emergency Days	HS Registrar Secretary
B2			Library Secretary-Collections & Processing
			Mail Clerk
	228 Days-8hrs per day	Work same days as teachers; 3 Weeks	Secretary to SEAP Program
C1	No Half-Days in Summer	before school; 4 Weeks after school; Work	
		Emergency Days	
C1	233 Days-8hrs per day	Work same days as teachers; 4 Weeks	Alternative Education Secretary
~ -	No Half-Days in Summer	before school; 4 Weeks after school; Work	Secretary to Coordinator of Health Services
		Emergency Days	
	228 Days-8hrs per day	Work same days as teachers; 3 Weeks	Secretary to Elementary Principal
C2	Half Days in Summer ⁵	before school; 4 Weeks after school; Half	
-	Actual Paid Days become 262, 261,	Days in Summer; Work Emergency Days	
	or 260		
	233 Days-8hrs per day	Work same days as teachers; 4 Weeks	Secretary to K-8 Principal
C2	Half Days in Summer ⁵	before school; 4 Weeks after school; Half	
	Actual Paid Days Become 262, 261,	Days in Summer; Work Emergency Days	
	260		
	262, 261, or 260 Days-8hrs per day	Work Emergency Days	Curriculum/Textbook secretary
			SAMHSA Secretary
~ ~			Secretary to Assistant Director Special
C3			Education/SEA/Receptionist
			Secretary to High School Principal Secretary to Middle School Principal
			Special Education Student Records
	262, 261, or 260 Days-8hrs per day	Worlt Emorgon ou Doug	Accounts Payable Analyst
	202, 201, 01 200 Days-onis per day	Work Emergency Days	Secretary to the Director of Curriculum &
			Instruction
			Claims & Statistical Informational Analyst
			Claims Supervisor
			Classified Staff Secretary-HR
			Data Analyst
			Payroll Analyst
			Purchasing Analyst
D			Purchasing/Transportation Clerk Analyst
			Secretary to Assistant Superintendent
			Secretary to Director and Assistant Director of
			Building & Grounds
			Secretary to Director of Special Education
			Secretary to the Director of Student Services
			Special Education Secretary-Records/Data
			Special Dudcation Sceretary-Records/ Data
			Analyst

0-449 Pupils/4 hours per day & 450 or above/6 hours per day 4 hours per day

³ K-8th Part-Time Secretarial Hours: ⁴ Middle School Clerk Typist Hours:

⁵ Only one-half day is paid for July 4

AGREEMENT

WORKING CONDITIONS AND WAGE SCHEDULE

BETWEEN

BOARD OF EDUCATION, DISTRICT #61

DECATUR, ILLINOIS

AND

DECATUR EDUCATIONAL SUPPORT PERSONNEL ASSOCIATION

JULY 17, 2017 - JUNE 30, 2021

CONTENTS

ARTICLE	TITLE	PAGE
Ι	Recognition	1
II	Rights and Responsibilities	1-3
III	Working Conditions	3-4
IV	Performance of Duties, Discharge and Suspension	4-6
V	Grievance Procedure	6-8
VI	Vacations and Holidays	8-10
VII	Short Term Leaves	10-12
VIII	Extended Leaves of Absence	13-15
IX	Compensation and Insurance	15-18
Х	Summer Employment	18-19
XI	Promotions, Vacancies, Transfers and Position Eliminations	19-21
XII	Evaluation	21-22
XIII	Miscellaneous Provisions	22-24
XIV	Limitations	24-25
XV	Modification and Waiver	25
	Appendix	26
	Schedule A	27-30
	Schedule B	31

PREAMBLE

This Agreement, developed and agreed to by the Board of Education for School District No. 61, Decatur, Illinois, and the Decatur Educational Support Personnel Association shall take effect on the seventeenth day of July 2017, and continue in effect through June 30, 2021, and shall continue from year to year unless either party notifies the other in writing ninety (90) days prior to expiration of their desire to change, alter, or modify the contents of the Agreement. Both parties shall meet at least thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of the Agreement to discuss the proposed revisions. Any changes or additions to the Agreement shall, when agreed upon, be incorporated in the Agreement.

ARTICLE I RECOGNITION

- A. The Board of Education for School District No. 61, Decatur, Illinois, hereinafter referred to as the "Board" recognizes the Decatur Educational Support Personnel Association, hereinafter referred to as the "Association", as the representative of all educational office personnel except confidential employees as defined by the Illinois Public Labor Relations Act, employed in the Decatur Public Schools for the purpose of negotiation of wages, hours, and conditions of employment.
- B. Both the Board and the Association agree that each employee has the right to join or not to join any organization for his/her professional or economic improvement.
- C. All benefits, rights, and responsibilities provided by this Agreement shall apply equally to all educational office personnel covered by this Agreement.

ARTICLE II RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES

A. Association Business

- 1. Authorized association representatives shall be granted time to attend state or national association meetings or attend to other business of the local association, provided that the amount of time so taken does not exceed twenty (20) days per year.
- 2. The Board of Education shall allocate \$500 for DESPA members to attend state conventions and/or local workshops.

B. Fair Share

Each employee, as a condition of their employment, on or before thirty (30) days from the date of commencement of duties or the effective date of this Agreement, whichever is later, shall join the Association or pay a fair share fee to the Association equivalent to the amount of dues uniformly required of members of the Association, including local, state, and national dues. In the event that the employee does not pay their fair share fee directly to the Association by a certain date as established by the Association, the Board shall deduct the fair share fee from the wages of the non-member.

Such fee shall be paid to the Association by the Board no later than ten (10) days following deduction.

In the event of any legal action against the employer brought in a court or administrative agency because of its compliance with the Article, the Association agrees to defend such action, at its own expense and through its own counsel, provided:

- 1. The employer gives immediate notice of such action in writing to the Association, and permits the Association intervention as a party if it so desires; and
- 2. The employer gives full and complete cooperation to the Association and its counsel in securing and giving evidence, obtaining witnesses and making relevant information available at both trial and all appellate levels.

The Association agrees that in any action so defended, it will indemnify and hold harmless the Employer from any liability for damages and costs imposed by a final judgment of a court or administrative agency as a direct consequence of the employer's compliance with this article. It is expressly understood that this save harmless provision will not apply to any claim, demand, suit, or other form of liability which may arise as a result of any type of willful misconduct by the Board or the Board's imperfect execution of the obligations imposed upon it by this Article.

The obligation to pay a fair share fee will not apply to any employee who, on the basis of a bonafide religious tenet of teaching of a church or religious body of which the employee is a member, objects to the payment of a fair share fee to the Association. Upon proper substantiation and collection of the entire fee, the Association will make payment on behalf of the employee to a mutually agreeable non-religious charitable organization as per Association policy and the Rules and Regulations of the Illinois Educational Labor Relations Board.

C. Mail Service

The Association shall have the right to use the District e-mail service, District mail service and mail boxes for communications to members of the bargaining unit. No postage shall be paid by the Board for the Associations' communications.

D. Use of the Building Facilities

The Association shall have the right to use school building facilities at any time for official Association meetings. The Association may request the use of school building facilities for general membership meetings or other Association purposes and such requests will be handled in the same manner as all other requests received by the Board for use of District facilities except that charges for use of District facilities will be limited to custodial and maintenance costs when the purpose of such use is an official Association general membership meeting and custodial/maintenance costs exceed those costs normally incurred on any respective day.

E. Board Packets

The Board of Education shall make available a copy of the Board Packet to the President of DESPA or DESPA Designee when available to the Board members.

F. <u>Committees</u>

DESPA shall have the right to inquire about membership on committees. DESPA shall be afforded a seat on committees involved in hiring of building level administrators. District level administrator hiring committees shall be staffed at the discretion of the board of education, but such discretion shall not preclude DESPA from asking to be included. DESPA shall have the right to identify other committees in which it desires to be included on a regular and ongoing basis.

ARTICLE III WORKING CONDITIONS

A. <u>Work Year</u>

The work year for all educational office employees shall be as indicated on Schedule B, Classification of Educational Office Personnel.

B. Work Day

- 1. The working hours of office employees shall be nine (9) hours eight (8) hours on duty and one (1) hour for lunch as scheduled by the immediate supervisor.
- 2. Upon approval of the immediate supervisor, the working hours for educational office personnel may be adjusted to reflect a one-half hour lunch period.
- 3. Any part-time secretary substituting for a full-time secretary should do so at his/her (part-time) secretary rate.
- 4. All employees shall be allowed one (1) fifteen-minute break in the morning and one (1) fifteen minute break in the afternoon.
- 5. Work days for office employees include all weekdays, except those designated as holidays in Article VI of this Agreement, and includes days of teachers' institutes.
- 6. Any regularly scheduled school days when students and teachers are not in attendance due to unusual circumstances, such as weather conditions, shall be considered a working day. Employees will have the option of working, using a vacation day, using a personal leave day, using a sick leave day, or taking the day off without pay.

C. <u>Retirement</u>

1. The ending date for terminating employees shall be to include unused vacation days and included in unused vacation days shall be a proration of vacation (rounded to the nearest one-half day) earned in the fiscal year of termination. Vacation entitlement shall be based on the number of days added to the employee's record on the previous June 30. Terminating employees who have taken more vacation days than entitled shall reimburse the Board for the number of vacation days taken but not due them.

D. Protection of Employees

All employees shall be protected against any harassment, interference, language or badgering by any group or individual on the District premises. It shall be the responsibility of the Supervisor and/or the Superintendent of Schools to take whatever actions are deemed necessary to provide employees adequate protection in such situations, including but not limited to enforcement of building security. This does not preclude the responsibility of the employees to work with parents or guardians in resolving school problems.

The general policy, subject to emergency exceptions, shall be that no action against an employee may be taken on a complaint by a parent of a student or by a student, unless such proposed action is first reported in writing to such employee affected thereby and the employee is given an opportunity for a hearing before a representative of the Board concerning the complaint and action proposed to be taken thereon.

E. Surveillance

The purpose of surveillance equipment is to secure the buildings. The purpose of surveillance equipment is not to evaluate the performance of employees or to monitor their behavior or conduct. If the review of data inadvertently reveals alleged incidents of employee misconduct, the employee and the Association will be notified if the District intends to investigate the alleged employee misconduct incident. Such notification will be in writing. The Association or Employee's representative may review the data depicting the alleged employee misconduct.

ARTICLE IV PERFORMANCE OF DUTIES, DISCHARGE AND SUSPENSION

A. Performance of Duties

It is hereby agreed that all staff members covered by this Agreement shall comply with all working rules and perform in a satisfactory manner the job related duties assigned and in the manner prescribed by their supervisors.

B. Discipline

1. Pre-Disciplinary Meeting

When the Board is contemplating administering discipline, a pre-disciplinary fact finding meeting will be held.

2. Notice

The employee and the Association will be given 3 work days (which are days the District is open for business) prior written notice of the scheduled meeting, except in cases of extreme emergency. Such notice shall contain the reason, date, time and location of the meeting, and shall inform the employee of his/her right to DESPA representation. An agenda listing the reasons for such a meeting shall accompany

this written notice. Every employee has the right to have criticisms, disciplinary meetings and reprimands held in private.

C. <u>Discharge/Suspension</u>

- 1. Staff members who fail to satisfactorily perform their assigned duties may be discharged or suspended, but in respect to discharge shall be given at least one warning notice in writing within twelve (12) months prior to discharge. A copy of any notice of suspension or discharge shall be given to the DESPA President or DESPA Designee except that no warning notice need be given prior to discharge if the staff member is a probationary employee (probationary period is the first 90 days of employment). The following are among causes for discharge:
 - a.) Willfully causing any bodily injury to any person upon the school premises.
 - b.) Possession of intoxicants or controlled substances not prescribed by an attending physician and/or being intoxicated or drugged on school premises.
 - c.) Stealing school property or property of others.
 - d.) Willful destruction of school property or damage to school property because of carelessness, neglect, or not following instruction pertaining to the care and operation of such property and equipment.
 - e.) Willful insubordination or sleeping on the job. Refusal or failure to perform work assigned. Use of abusive or threatening language, or action toward the foreman, supervisor, or other employees.
 - f.) Continued and repeated failure to satisfactorily perform assigned duties.
 - g.) Employees who accept regular employment during the work week in addition to their assignment with the Decatur Public Schools and it interferes in any way with their job with the Decatur Public Schools.
 - h.) Any employee who leaves a job during regular employment hours without consent of the supervisor, unless such departure was caused by an emergency.
 - i.) Use of school vehicles, machines, tools, etc., for personal or private use without the proper approval of the Superintendent of Schools or his/her designated representative.
 - j.) Knowingly having falsified job applications, records, reports, time sheets, etc.

2. Suspension

The Board at its option, may suspend without pay rather than discharge an employee if in its opinion the situation warrants such action. The maximum period of such suspension shall be ninety (90) working days. In determining whether an employee should be discharged or suspended, the Board will consider the staff member's employment record, the nature of the offense and any other pertinent information, and their decision shall be final.

- 3. The suspension or discharge of an employee will be handled in the following manner.
 - a.) When the Board or its representative determines to suspend or discharge an employee, the employee shall be told the reason for the action and given an opportunity to reply to the charges. Notice of either suspension or discharge will be given in writing before the employee departs the premises of Decatur Public Schools.
 - b.) If the employee feels he/she has been dealt with unjustly and a hearing is desired, he/she shall proceed according to the grievance procedure.
 - c.) If it is found that the employee has been dealt with in an unjust manner, the Board will reinstate the employee in his/her job with all former rights and benefits restored, and will pay the employee all loss of earnings.

ARTICLE V GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

- A. <u>Definition</u> A grievance shall mean a written complaint by an employee, a group of employees or the Association that there has been an alleged violation, misinterpretation, or misapplication of the agreement.
- B. <u>Constraints</u> Any investigation or other handling or processing of any grievances by the grievant or the Association shall be conducted so as to result in no interference with or interruption whatsoever of the instruction program and related work activities of the grievant or of the District's employees.
- C. General Provisions
 - 1. No employee at any stage of the grievance procedure will be required to meet with any administrator or supervisor without an Association representative.
 - 2. Any employee who participates in the grievance procedure shall not be subject to disciplinary action or reprisal because of such participation.
 - 3. The employee or his/her Association representative has the right to be present at all hearings and meetings concerning his/her grievance.
 - 4. In any instance where the Association is not representing the grievant, the administrator or supervisor receiving the grievance or making the decision shall notify the Association in writing of all meetings, hearings, and the resolution at any level. Any agreement made between the administrator and/or supervisor with the member shall be in accordance with the mutually agreed to agreement between the Board and DESPA.

- 5. A grievance may be initiated and/or conducted by:
 - a. an employee on his/her own behalf
 - b. an employee accompanied by an Association representative
 - c. an Association representative at the employee's request
 - d. the Association
 - e. group of employees
- 6. All references to days shall mean school days, except that between the end of the school year in June and the beginning of the next school year, days, shall mean days when the District's business offices are open.
- 7. All time limits may be extended by mutual agreement between the parties.
- 8. Grievance procedure Personnel File: All records related to a grievance shall be filed separately from the personnel file of the employee.

D. Procedure for Adjustment of Grievances

<u>Informal Conference</u> - Within ten (10) days of when the grievant knew or should have known of the occurrence of the event which first gave rise to the grievance, a complaint shall first be discussed with the object of resolving the matter informally. In the event the matter is resolved informally and an Association representative was not present at the adjustment of the complaint, the supervisor shall inform the DESPA President or DESPA Designee of the adjustment.

Step One:

In the event the matter is not resolved informally, the grievant or the Association shall present a written statement on a form of the alleged violation to the principal or other appropriate supervisor within ten (10) days of the informal conference. The supervisor shall, within ten (10) school days of the receipt of the grievance confer with the grievant and/or his/her Association representative to try to resolve the grievance. Within ten (10) school days after the completion of the conference, the supervisor shall give his/her written decision. A copy of the decision shall be given to the Association.

Step Two:

In the event that the grievance has not been resolved in the first step, the Association or the grievant may file an appeal to the Superintendent or his/her designee. The appeal shall be made within ten (10) school days after the receipt of the supervisor's decision. Within ten (10) school days of the receipt of the appeal, the Superintendent or his/her designee shall confer with the Association and the grievant in an effort to resolve the grievance. The Superintendent, within ten (10) school days following the conference shall file his/her written decision with the grievant and the Association.

Step Three:

Within thirty (30) school days after receiving the decision of the Superintendent or his/her designee, the Association may submit the grievance to binding arbitration of the American Arbitration Association (AAA). The arbitrator shall follow the standard rules of the AAA. The Board and the grievant shall share equally the arbitrator's fees and the court reporter's expenses.

ARTICLE VI VACATIONS AND HOLIDAYS

A. Vacations

1. Staff members in the District, who work 20 or more hours per week, shall be entitled to a vacation with pay in accordance with the following schedule and Schedule B:

Days of Vacation Entitlement by Classification

	<u>B2, C2,</u>		
	<u>C3, D</u>	C1	<u>A2, B1</u>
One to Five	10	9	8
Six to Ten	15	14	13
Eleven or More	20	19	18

Vacation will be allotted on July 1 of the current fiscal year.

- Staff members employed on or before September 1 shall be considered as having one (1) year of service as of June 30. Staff members hired after September 1 shall receive a prorated vacation entitlement.
- 3. After a full year of employment with District No. 61, a staff member who voluntarily terminates his/her employment, retires, or is terminated because of the elimination of his/her position shall receive a prorated vacation entitlement. Employees who are discharged shall receive no vacation entitlement and employees who are suspended shall receive no vacation entitlement for the period of their suspension. Employees reemployed within six (6) months following termination due to elimination of position, shall receive vacation entitlement held prior to termination.
- 4. An employee must have worked a minimum of sixty (60) percent of his/her scheduled work days or have been paid accrued benefits in the preceding fiscal year in order to be eligible for any vacation.
- 5. Full-time staff members may take their vacation at any time during the year subject to the approval of their supervisor. Payment for unused accumulated vacation time upon separation from employment shall be made no sooner than 30 days following such separation. It is it he parties' intent that such payment shall be sheltered from and against IMRF contribution.
 - a. A maximum of ten (10) vacation days may be carried forward to the following year.

- b. Unused vacation day sin excess of the above ten (10) days will be added to the employee's accumulated sick leave on July 1.
- 6. It is understood that during breaks (Christmas & Spring), in Classifications A2, B1, and C1 should not be scheduled to work. Those employees shall use accrued vacation for that time. Employees may reserve as many as two (2) vacation days for future breaks and instead elect to take unpaid days. It is understood that if the employee has exhausted all accrued vacation, the employee shall not work nor be paid for remaining day(s) unless the employee has personal days she/he elects to use. If the employee is requested to work by administration during the breaks, the employee and their administrator will forward the request in advance to the HR Director. The HR Director will give a written list of those approved to work over breaks to the DESPA President or designee by two weeks after each break.
- 7. Staff members who are full time employees but work less than fifty-two (52) weeks per year, and are employed on a continuous basis for the number of weeks required for his/her position as specified in Schedule B shall have vacation entitlement and may take their vacation at any time during the year subject to the approval of his/her supervisor. Any unused vacation entitlement is to be added to the staff member's accumulated sick leave.

B. Holidays

- 1. Office employees, who work 20 or more hours per week, shall have the following days off duty with pay:
 - a.) Independence Day Thanksgiving Day Labor Day Friday after Thanksgiving Columbus Day December 24 Veterans Day Christmas Day Pulaski Day New Year's Day Martin Luther King Jr.'s Birthday President's Day Spring Break Day-Friday before Easter Memorial Day
 - b.) No member of the bargaining unit shall be required to work on legal holidays unless an emergency or continuous operation and maintenance of school facilities requires his/her attendance.

If any of the above legal holidays ceases to be a legal holiday, employees shall not have that day off duty with pay, but one day's time will be added to vacation eligibility.

- 2. Persons working twenty (20) hours or more a week, but less than full time, will receive holiday pay for days off that fall within their work year.
- 3. If a holiday is not observed in accordance with the legal holiday date or falls on a Saturday or Sunday, the observance will be scheduled on an alternate date.

- 4. An employee must be in pay status the day before and the day after a holiday to be paid for the holiday. If ill the day before or after a holiday, the employee must have and use benefit time in order to be paid for the holiday.
- 5. If a staff member takes a religious holiday, other than those included in the list of approved holidays noted in paragraph one (1) above, the absence shall be considered time off without pay unless the staff member elects to have it charged against his/her vacation.

ARTICLE VII SHORT TERM LEAVES

A. Sick Leave

1. Sick without loss of pay shall be credited annually to each office employee who works 20 or more hours per week on the first day of each fiscal year in accordance with the following schedule:

Days of Sick Leave Entitlement by Classification

Clasification of Employment	Days Per Year
B2, C2, C3, D	16
C1	14
A2, B1	13

- 2. Absences for Sick Leave shall be allowed under accrued sick leave. Sick leave shall include the adoption of a child, quarantine, serious illness, (includes mental health, alcoholism, and drug abuse) death or illness in the immediate family or household.* (Immediate family shall include wife, husband, child, father, mother, sister, brother, grandparent, grandchild, daughter-in-law, son-in-law of the employee; and father, mother, sister, or brother of spouse of the employee; step-mother, step-father, step-sister, step-brother of the employee or spouse of the employee; or persons in loco parentis of employee.) * Anyone residing in the home more than six (6) months of the calendar year.
- 3. A doctor's statement shall be required for all absences due to quarantine or serious illness (includes mental health, alcoholism, and drug abuse) in the immediate family.
- 4. Employees hired after the fiscal year begins shall be credited with the prorated number of sick leave days rounded off to the nearest one-half (1/2) day.
- 5. A doctor's statement may be required for personal illness charged against sick leave. If personal illness is claimed, a doctor's statement may be required after an employee has been absent three (3) consecutive days. The employee is responsible for obtaining the doctor's statement. A doctor's statement may be required in certain other cases by the School District where the absence of the employee is less than three consecutive days. In this case, the cost of obtaining this certificate shall be borne by the District and the District may require in this instance the employee

to see a doctor of its own choosing. If an employee is absent for serious illness (includes mental health, alcoholism, and drug abuse) or for hospitalization, a doctor's release for regular duties must be presented before returning to work.

- 6. Official records of sick leave entitlement and use will be maintained in hours. The hours of sick leave entitlement will be calculated by multiplying the number of days of entitlement by the number of hours in the staff member's work day. Sick leave may be used in increments of .25, .5, and .75 hours.
- 7. Employees may accumulate 1920 hours (240 days) of sick leave or the maximum credit amount allowed by IMRF if greater.
- 8. Accumulated sick leave shall automatically terminate on the date that a staff member's employment terminates. Employees reemployed within one calendar year, following termination due to elimination of position, shall receive sick leave entitlement held prior to termination.
- 9. With the consent and on the conditions set forth by their immediate supervisor, fulltime employees released by their doctors only for part-time work may return from sick leave and work part-time until their doctors release them for full-time work.

B. Personal Day

- 1. Staff members will be permitted three (3) personal leave days annually, with such to be deducted from sick leave entitlement. Personal leave may be used in increments of one (1) hour.
- 2. A written request for personal leave (no reason need be stated) shall be made to the appropriate supervisor in advance of taking the leave.
- 3. Personal leave days may not be taken during the first five (5) days and the last five (5) days of school. Exceptions to this shall include emergencies, religious holidays, and times when the staff member or his/her immediate family is personally involved in a court case, graduation exercise, or an honor convocation.
- 4. Personal leave days may be used before or after a holiday under the following conditions:
 - a. Not more than one secretary per immediate supervisor may utilize said leave for each holiday.
 - b. Five (5) days written notice must be given.

D. Funeral Leave

- 1. Absences for attendance at funerals shall be allowed under accrued sick leave provided such absence does not exceed the date of the funeral and reasonable travel time.
- 2. If a staff member is requested to serve as a pallbearer and, to do so, must be absent from work, the absence shall be considered time off without pay unless the staff member elects to have it charged against accrued sick leave.

3. An employee wishing to attend the funeral of a currently enrolled student or a current staff member will not be charged a sick day to attend the funeral. Arrangements can be made with the supervisor and with the cooperation of other employees to cover the responsibilities of the employee allowed to attend. Arrangements are acceptable provided they do not require a full day of absence or the hiring of a substitute.

E. Disability Benefits

- 1. An employee participating in the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund, after employment of one (1) year, is eligible for disability benefits. These benefits shall begin on the 31st day after the illness or absence began or, if the employee has accumulated sick leave of over thirty (30) days. Employee can use temporary benefits on the 31st day off without exhausting sick leave benefits. This is the employee's option.
- 2. Sick leave benefits available to employees are to be coordinated with benefits which an employee receives under Worker's Compensation. If an employee eligible to receive sick leave is injured in the course of employment and receives disability benefits under Worker's Compensation the employee shall receive from Decatur Public School District #61 the difference between the Worker's Compensation benefits and the wages or salary to which the employee is entitled under the Decatur Public School District #61 leave program. The accumulated sick leave of the employee shall be reduced proportionately based upon the compensation remitted by the Decatur Public School District #61.

Pro-rated sick leave shall be available to the employee only to the extent that an employee has accumulated sick leave days, so that an employee shall receive full pay upon days which an employee is unable to work due to work-related injury or illness, but in no instance will an employee be entitled to a combination of sick leave benefits and Worker's Compensation benefits in excess of the employee's regular pay. In no event will an employee be entitled to sick leave benefits beyond the accumulation of sick leave days of that employee. An employee on Worker's Compensation may waive sick leave pay, in which case the employee shall not be charged with sick leave use.

- F. Accident of Employees
 - 1. When an accidental injury occurs, such accidental injury shall be immediately referred to a certified medical doctor.
 - 2. Employees may select a physician of their own choosing.
 - 3. Worker's Compensation, as required by law, is provided all employees. It provides first aid, medical and surgical services, and compensation for periods of disablement, in case of the on-the-job accidental injury while an employee is engaged in official district business. Worker's Compensation shall be administered by a provider under contract with the Board.

ARTICLE VIII EXTENDED LEAVES OF ABSENCE

- A. The following conditions shall apply to all extended leaves of absence unless otherwise indicated:
 - 1. Requests for leave shall be in writing to the Director of Human Resources.
 - 2. Eligibility shall be based on a minimum of two (2) full terms of continuous employment in the Decatur District.
 - 3. Leaves shall be limited to one year effective as of the date of the leave. Further extension shall be at the discretion of the Board.
 - 4. Leaves shall be without pay.
 - 5. Salary increments shall not accrue during leave.
 - 6. Sick leave days shall not accrue during leave.
 - 7. Accrued benefits earned at the time the leave begins shall be retained. Accrued benefits shall be defined to mean accumulated sick leave, and placement on the salary schedule (staff member retains full salary placement credit to which staff member was entitled at the time the leave was granted.)
 - 8. Employees who are absent due to illness reasons, including those employees who subsequently receive temporary disability benefits or accidental disability benefits from District 61 affiliated retirement programs, will have their health and life insurance coverage continued at Board expense for the period they are receiving sick leave benefits from the Board and for a period up to six months from the date sick leave is exhausted.
 - 9. Employees covered under the Board's group health insurance policy who are on authorized leave of absence for reasons other than illness, including child rearing, may continue to be covered by this insurance for a period as provided under COBRA, providing the employee pays the monthly premium in advance. A waiver of participation must be signed by employees going on leave who do not desire to continue their coverage, and such person must meet medical requirements of the insurance company to again qualify for insurance coverage under the Board's group policy.
 - 10. The Board may request a staff member on leave to furnish a statement from a physician or a psychiatrist indicating whether or not the staff member is capable of returning to work.
 - 11. Written notice of intention to either return or resign shall be given to the Director of Human Resources no less than sixty (60) days prior to the expiration of the leave. Failure to furnish such written notice shall constitute a notice of resignation.
 - 12. Reemployment during the school year shall be at the discretion of the Board.

- 13. Staff members who are granted leave of absence cannot be assured of placement in the same position when they return. The best possible assignment, however, shall be made within the existing vacancies.
- B. Authorized Leaves
 - 1. Child Rearing Leave

Staff members who are expectant mothers shall upon request, be granted child rearing leave.

2. Adoption Leave/Foster Care Leave

Staff members shall, upon request, be granted a leave of absence for the adoption of a child.

3. Detached Service Leave

Staff members shall, upon request, be granted a leave of absence for detached service to work for an educational institution, a foundation, or an official government agency, or the State or National affiliate of the local Union.

4. Extended Illness Leave

Staff members whose serious health condition extends beyond the period compensated under Section VII of this document will be granted a leave of absence until such time as a physician certifies the staff member is capable of returning to work or starts receiving disability benefits under the IMRF. In no case shall extended illness leave extend beyond one (1) calendar year. Personal illness would include mental health, alcoholism, and drug abuse.

5. Family Hardship Leave

Staff members shall, upon request, be granted a leave of absence for the purpose of caring for a sick member of his/her family. A written statement of need from a physician shall accompany the request.

6. Military Leave

Staff members required to serve in the armed forces of the United States shall be granted a leave of absence without pay for the period in the service. Time spent in the armed forces shall be credited to their years of experience on the salary schedule upon their return to the school system. Staff members will not suffer any seniority loss.

7. Study Leave

Employees shall, upon request, be granted a leave of absence for study designed to improve their competencies.

8. General Leave

Employees may, upon request, be granted a leave of absence for such purposes as deemed appropriate by the Superintendent.

9. Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA)

All full-time and part-time employees shall be eligible for up to 12 weeks per year of FMLA for the following reasons:

- birth and care of the newborn child of the employee;
- for placement with the employee of a son or daughter for adoption or foster care;
- to care for an immediate family member (spouse, child, or parent) with a serious health condition; or
- to take medical leave when the employee is unable to work because of a serious health condition
- including any amendments.

During the family and medical leave period, the District shall continue to pay the health insurance premium set forth in the collective bargaining agreement. Employees shall not be required to use family and medical leave prior to, instead of, or simultaneously with any accrued leave. The employee shall have the option to make use of family and medical leave or any other contractual leave. The 12 months/1250 hours used in a determining eligibility will be the 12 months/1250 hours. Eligible employees may use unpaid family and medical leave, guaranteed by the Federal Family and Medical Leave Act, for up to a combined total of 12 weeks in any rolling 12-month period. Following the leave period, the employee shall be reinstated to his/her previous position or an equivalent position. All seniority, benefits, sick leave, vacation leave, etc. will continue to accrue during the time an employee is utilizing FMLA. Employees may use this leave intermittently up to 12 weeks.

ARTICLE IX COMPENSATION AND INSURANCE

- A. Compensation
 - 1. Educational office personnel for the Decatur Public Schools shall be paid in accordance with and work under the conditions set forth in this agreement. Wage rates of all employees covered by this agreement are set forth in Schedule A which is attached hereto and made a part hereto.
 - 2. No changes or additions in existing classification or positions will be made without prior notification to the DESPA represented by the Bargaining Committee. Classifications of all educational office personnel covered by this Agreement are set forth in Schedule B of the Appendix which is attached hereto and made a part hereof.

B. Overtime

- 1. Any overtime work must be offered to the full-time secretary and not to a part-time or temporary employee. If the overtime is not desired by the full-time secretary, then the part-time or temporary employee working may be offered the extra time.
- 2. Compensation for authorized overtime is one and one-half times the regular hourly rate shown on Schedule A. There shall be no overtime except that authorized by the immediate supervisor. No overtime shall be paid unless forty (40) hours for the week have been worked.
- 3. Overtime work performed on Saturday shall be paid at time and one-half the respective hourly rate. Overtime work performed on Sunday shall be paid at twice the respective hourly rate, only if overtime work has been performed on Saturday (the day before) at time and one-half respective hourly rate. Overtime work will not be performed on Sunday unless it is an emergency.
- 4. Overtime work performed on a holiday as listed in Article VI-B, 1, or as declared by the Board shall be paid at the rate of time and one-half in addition to holiday pay.
- 5. Compensatory Time Off: Employees who work extra hours may receive, with the agreement of the employee and the supervisor, time off at a future date in lieu of overtime pay. Compensatory time off will be at the same rate that would be paid for overtime. The compensatory time off is one and one-half times the number of overtime hours worked.

C. Insurance

- 1. Full-time:
 - a. Bargaining unit members, who work six (6) or more hours per day and 5 days per week will share the cost of an insurance policy covering hospital and medical costs paid for by the Board of Education. Upon the last day of the month in which termination or resignation from public school employment occurs, insurance coverage shall cease.
 - b. Beginning in January 2014, employees that select single insurance will pay \$75 (\$900 annually) monthly towards health and medical insurance. Beginning in January 2014, married employees (who are both employed by the District) that select single coverage insurance each will pay the aforementioned monthly cost toward the cost of health and medical insurance. The employee-paid portion of the premium shall be sheltered under Section 125 of the Internal Revenue Code.
 - c. Health and medical insurance coverage for the family of employees will be on an optional basis. The employee-paid portion of the premium shall be sheltered under Section 125 of the Internal Revenue Code.
 - d. Beginning in January 2014, employees that select family coverage insurance will pay \$275 per month (\$3300 annually) toward the cost of family health and medical insurance. Beginning in January 2014, married employees (that are both employed by the District) that select family coverage insurance will

pay the aforementioned monthly cost toward the cost of family health and medical insurance.

2. Part-Time:

For bargaining unit members who work four (4) hour or more and less than six (6) hours, five (5) days per week, the Board of Education will pay one-half of the single premium cost. Bargaining unit members who work less than four (4) hours per are not eligible for insurance benefits. Any employee working less than four (4) hours who was hired before June 30, 2017 will be grandfathered to participate in the insurance program at her/his own expense of the full family or single insurance premium.

3. Prescription Card

Prescription cards will be made available to each employee who is receiving health and medical coverage through the health insurance plan. Employees should direct any questions or concerns to the District Business Office.

4. Insurance Changes

If the District Insurance Committee considers any change to insurance, during the term of this contract or between contracts, the Insurance Committee and the Board will reduce to writing any proposed changes. Decision making shall be made through 80% agreement of voting members of the District Insurance Committee. DESPA shall be entitled to one vote for each one hundred DESPA members or portion thereof. It is understood that DESPA shall have a minimum of one representative on the Insurance Committee. Any member may send a proxy to vote, and voting shall be limited to one vote per member present. Upon ratification of DEA membership, the proposed changes will be taken to the Board for approval.

- 5. The health and medical insurance coverage which is presently in effect will be on an optional basis for IMRF-eligible employees who retire from the Decatur School District. Retirees who opt to participate in the employee group health insurance plan will pay the entire annual premium. Coverage will end when the retiree reaches the age of sixty-five (65).
- 6. The Board will provide for each full-time office employee life insurance in the amount of one and one half (1 ¹/₂) times their annual salary at no cost to the employee.
- 7. The Board shall indemnify and protect office employees against any loss of, damage to, or destruction of the office employee's personal property as a result of assault and/or battery committed against them while working within their scope of employment and said assault and/or battery to be without legal justification.

8. Flex Plan

The following options are available (annually, during open enrollment) to employees of Decatur School District No. 61. Employees should direct any questions or concerns to the District Business Office.

a. Dependent Care Assistance Plan

This plan will enable each participant to elect to receive payments of reimbursement of his/her dependent care expenses that are excludable from the participant's gross income under Section 129 of the Code.

b. Medical Reimbursement Plan

This plan enables each participant to elect to receive payments of reimbursements of his/her medical care expenses that are excludable from the participant's gross income under Section 105(b) of the Code.

c. Volunteer Dental Plan

This volunteer Dental Plan will enable each employee to participate in a group dental plan.

D. <u>Retirement Contribution</u>

Staff members who participate in the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund will be granted an increase in gross earnings according to the following schedule:

<u>Years of District Experience</u>	<u>Percentage</u>
15-17	0.5%
18	1.0%
19	1.5%
20	2.0%
21	2.5%
22	3.0%
23	3.5%
24	4.0%
25	4.5%

ARTICLE X SUMMER EMPLOYMENT

A. <u>Applications</u>

Clerical staff members employed less than fifty-two (52) weeks may request consideration for summer employment by submitting a letter to the Director of Human Resources.

B. Selection

The selection of staff members for summer employment shall be on the basis of ability, skills, and years of service in the District. Clerical staff members employed less than fifty-two (52) weeks shall be given priority for summer clerical positions such as Summer School, textbook repair, summer substitutes, etc.

C. Compensation

Educational office personnel selected for clerical summer employment shall be paid at the same rate of pay as their regular employment. However, summer employment shall not increase the number of vacation days or sick leave days to which the employee is entitled.

ARTICLE XI PROMOTIONS, VACANCIES, TRANSFERS AND POSITION ELIMINATIONS

A. Vacancies

- 1. Information regarding educational office personnel positions which are available, either through creation or vacancy, shall be publicized to the staff. Notices of vacancies will include current description of work, classification of the job, and prerequisite qualifications needed for application, including specific training and experience.
- 2. All position vacancies, including temporary positions expected to last a minimum of eight (8) consecutive weeks, shall be posted for bid. A minimum of seven (7) days shall be allowed for submission of applications.
- 3. Vacancies occurring within the bargaining unit, including newly created positions, shall be posted within 7 days of receiving notification of intent to vacate the position. The names of all applicants for the position are to be forwarded to the appropriate administrator. Interviews shall be held within 2 weeks of the expiration of the posting period. If no applications are received for the position, it shall be reposted within 7 days. If no applications are received or no acceptable applicants apply, the employee vacating the position will not be held in said position longer than 10 working days. Within 10 working days, all Association applicants will receive written notification of the outcome of the interview.
- 4. Staff members may apply for any vacancy by District application process. Other than situations covered by C. Position Eliminations, all staff members shall be interviewed and given consideration before any applicant is appointed to the position.
 - a. A staff member who interviewed and was not selected may request a reason for the non-selection. The Director of Human Resources shall inform the staff member, in writing, of the reason.
- 5. In filling vacancies the Board agrees to give due consideration to the ability, skills, length of service and other relevant factors of all applicants.

- 6. Staff members selected to fill vacancies at either the same or different classification shall retain their years of experience.
- 7. The Association shall be involved in the process to create any new position.
- B. Involuntary Transfers

The Board may transfer or reassign staff member when necessary to best utilize the staff or when it considers such transfer or reassignment to be in the best interest of the District. Before a transfer is made, the Director of Human Resources shall provide both the affected employee and the association written notice of the proposed transfer. In requesting transfers or reassignments the Board agrees to give due consideration to the ability, skills, length of service and other relevant factors of all employees. The administration shall consult with the staff member before a unilateral transfer is made. If the Board transfers or reassigns a staff member to a position falling in a lower pay grade than the one he/she presently holds, he/she shall continue to be compensated in accordance with his/her old pay grade for a period of one year or until such time as he/she may apply for and obtain a position of equal or higher pay grade, whichever comes sooner.

- C. Position Eliminations
 - 1. When buildings are closed or positions are eliminated, staff members in these buildings and positions retain a position in their classification within the following subgroups and Schedule B:
 - Classification A1; Classification A2; Classification B1; Classification B2; Classification C1 or C2; Classification C3; and Classification D.

The lay-off will occur beginning with the employee with the least amount of longevity in that classification subgroup. Bumping is respected exclusively within a Classification subgroup, and not across subgroups.

- 2. An employee displaced (but not RIF'd) as the result of a position being eliminated, that employee will be placed in a vacant position within the same classification and number of days. If no vacancy exists, the employee with the least amount of longevity in that classification subgroup will be RIF'd and the displaced employee will move into that position.
- 3. Recall will occur in the reverse order of layoff within classification and days worked.
- 4. If it becomes necessary to close buildings or eliminate positions, the employees in these buildings and positions and those employees with the least amount of service in the district will be given due notice as required by law.

- 5. If it becomes necessary to eliminate a position because government funds are no longer available, the position being one paid by the government rather than from District No. 61 funds, the two-week notice to which a staff member is entitled shall be paid from District No. 61 funds if necessary.
- D. Position Evaluation and Classification

The purpose of position evaluation is to determine the content and relative worth of each position and establish internal equity regarding compensation through the position classification plan. The position evaluation approach is a systematic and rational method for rating each position and assigning positions to responsibility groups that reflect their relative value to the District.

Procedure:

- 1. Letter requesting position review sent to Director of Human Resources.
- 2. Position Evaluation Questionnaires sent to incumbent and incumbent's supervisor.
- 3. Completed forms returned to Director of Human Resources.
- 4. Position Evaluation Committee meets in December and July to review requests. Committee is composed of: Director of Human Resources, Business Manager, Assistant Superintendent, & President of DESPA or DESPA designee and DESPA Bargaining Committee Chair.
- 5. Committee's recommendation sent to Superintendent. Superintendent makes final decision on recommendation.
- 6. Superintendent will notify incumbents and supervisors of the decision. Notice shall be given in writing within 10 school days of the meeting.
- 7. If the request is denied, the incumbent will be given the reasons for the denial in writing.
- 8. If the request is granted, the incumbent's pay will be retroactive to December 1st or July 1st depending on the date of request.

ARTICLE XII EVALUATION

A. Evaluator

Office Personnel shall be evaluated by the immediate supervisor.

B. Timeline

1. Probationary employees shall be evaluated before ninety (90) days and again after nine (9) months.

- 2. Employees new to a position will be evaluated at the end of the current year.
- 3. After one (1) year of experience, all employees will be evaluated once every two (2) years provided no areas rated needs improvement.

C. Response

Employees shall have the opportunity to write comments of agreement or disagreement on their evaluation.

D. Conferences

Evaluation conferences shall always take place with only the two (2) parties concerned present.

E. Documentation

Any deviation above or below "Acceptable" shall be documented by citing supporting information.

F. Joint Committee

No changes to the evaluation instrument shall occur without prior agreement of the Board/DESPA joint committee on evaluations.

ARTICLE XIII MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

A. Jury Duty and Court Appearance

Any member of the bargaining unit summoned to jury duty or issued a court subpoena shall be paid his/her full salary for each working day of absence, provided that the member pays the District the jury fee or witness fee. Part-time employees would pay back a prorated amount of the jury fee. If payment is not paid within forty (40) days, it will be withheld from subsequent pay. This provision is not applicable if the staff member is a plaintiff against the School District, the Board of Education, or its representative as a result of any legal actions commenced by or on behalf of the Decatur Educational Support Personnel Association, or as the result of any legal actions arising from collective negotiations between the Decatur Educational Support Personnel Association and the Board of Education.

B. Physical Examinations

Each new employee of the Decatur Public Schools is required to have a complete physical examination at the applicant's expense. A special form for the physical examination of all new employees shall be provided by the Human Resources Office.

C. Acceptance of Gifts

Employees of School District No. 61 are required to comply with the Illinois State Officials and Employees Ethics Act, 5 ILCS 430/1-1 *et seq.*, and Illinois Gift Ban, 5 ILCS 430/10-10 *et seq.*

D. In-service and Training

1. Each employee shall receive two (2) days per year to attend workshops without loss of pay.

2. There shall be one (1) day annually during which professional development is provided for clerical employees.

3. The District shall support no less than eight (8) hours of on-site training to new and newly promoted employees to be provided by a DESPA member and/or district departments, scheduled at the discretion of both employees' supervisors.

E. Freedom to Request a Conference

Any employee's request for conferences or hearings at any higher level shall not be considered by anyone as a reflection upon the employee. A reasonable use of this procedure is encouraged to the end that all employees, certificated or otherwise, shall enjoy freedom of thought and freedom of communication concerning their profession and the work of the school system, and to the end that ideas may flourish and creative thought be stimulated.

F. Definition of Probationary, Full-Time, Part-Time, Short Term Employees

- 1. <u>Probationary employee</u>: All new employees shall be considered as probationary employees for the first ninety (90) calendar days of their employment. The Board, through its appointed representative, shall have the right to discharge any employee in such status and no grievance shall arise therefrom.
- 2. <u>A full-time employee</u> is one who works eight (8) hours daily and is employed the number of weeks required for his/her position as specified in Schedule B, Classification of Educational Office Personnel. Full-time employees are eligible for full vacation, holiday, sick leave, and insurance benefits provided by the Board as specified in this Agreement.
- 3. <u>A part-time employee</u> is one who works less than full time and/or is employed on a continuous basis for the number of weeks required for his/her position as specified on Schedule B.

Part-time employees who work twenty (20) hours or more per week are eligible for vacation, sick leave, and holiday benefits calculated on a basis that is consistent with their daily earnings. Part-time employees who work six (6) or more hours per day are entitled to have the Board pay the premium to the extent identified in this agreement in Article IX.C. on their health insurance. Employees who work twenty (20) hours or more per week but less than thirty (30) hours per week are entitled to have the Board pay one-half of the premium on their health insurance if they pay the remaining one-half.

Part-time employees who work less than twenty (20) hours per week are not eligible for vacation, sick leave, holiday or insurance benefits.

4. <u>A short-term employee</u> may or may not work eight (8) hours daily but is not employed on a continuous basis or for the number of weeks required for the position. Short-term employees are not eligible for vacation, holidays, insurance benefits or sick leave.

G. Administering Medication

Employees shall not be required to administer medication; however, employees shall comply with Board policy, asthma episode emergency response protocol, and students' asthma action plans.

ARTICLE XIV LIMITATIONS

- A. The Decatur Educational Support Personnel Association and the individual members of the bargaining unit represented by the DESPA agree not to strike.
- B. The Decatur Educational Support Personnel Association and the individual members of the bargaining unit represented by the DESPA agree that they, will not during working hours engage in or encourage or support any strike, slowdown, or other concerted refusal to render full and complete services to the Board.
- C. This Agreement shall not supersede any existing or future laws of the State or Federal Government as they affect the legal operation of the school system by the Board. If any portion of this Agreement is in violation of any law or is declared invalid by any court or competent jurisdiction, or shall become inoperative because of any State or Federal law, that portion in disagreement shall be considered null and void, but the remaining portions of this Agreement shall continue in full force until the prescribed termination date.
- D. Except as expressly provided otherwise in this Agreement, the determination and administration of school policy, the operation and management of the schools, and the employment, termination, and direction of employees are vested exclusively in the Board of Education, and that the Board is the legally constituted body for that purpose.
- E. This Agreement shall create no personal or individual contractual obligation or liability on the part of any member or members of the Board of Education.

F. Waivers - If any waivers become subject to bargaining, at that time we will schedule a meeting to bargain.

ARTICLE XV MODIFICATION AND WAIVER

This Agreement may not be modified in whole or in part by the parties except by an instrument in writing duly executed by both parties and no departure from a provision of this Agreement by either party, or by their officers, agents, or representatives, or by members of the negotiating committees, shall be construed to constitute a continuing waiver of the right to enforce such provisions.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereunto set their hands and

seals this ______ day of ______, 2013.

DECATUR EDUCATIONAL SUPPORT PERSONNEL ASSOCIATION

Bargaining Committee Member _____

President _____

BOARD OF EDUCATION, DISTRICT NO. 61

President _____

Secretary _____

APPENDIX

4-year agreement, from July 17, 2017 and ending June 30, 2021.

Schedule to be adjusted to reflect a 4-year agreement. \$0.25 will be added to each cell of the schedule each year of the agreement.

1. An employee hired by October 1 of the year preceding each year of this agreement shall advance one step. This language shall not read to require step movement outside the 4 years of this agreement unless the parties agree to such movement. Past practice is expressly acknowledged by the parties to be that step movement is not required unless agreed at the conclusion of each contract year, and this language is intended as an express waiver of any status quo which would be contrary to the above.

2. Prior Work Experience Credit

Prior to employment with the District, applicants with prior work experience shall be awarded such work experience if it is related to position duties and responsibilities noted in the relevant job description and verifiable with a copy of a prior job description and by a prior employer (if possible).

Any such work experience must have been within the ten year period immediately prior to proposed employment in the District. New applicants may be granted placement up to step 3 if it meets the provisions of this document. Prior experience above step 3 shall be awarded only with mutual agreement of Director of Human Resources and the DESPA President or DESPA Designee.

Any employee returning from an extended leave of absence will retain full salary placement credit as defined in Article VIII – Extended Leaves of Absence A7.

Any former employee whose prior job was in Schedule B of the contract and is reemployed shall be granted full credit for prior District 61 employment.

- 3. Educational office personnel selected for summer employment shall be paid at the same rate of pay as their regular employment. However, summer employment shall not increase the number of vacation days or sick leave days to which the employee is entitled. Persons hired for summer employment who are not regular District 61 employees shall be paid the current Federal Minimum Wage.
- 4. The X-step is intended as a one (1) year payment to qualifying retiring employees in recognition of the many years of faithful and dedicated service the employee has given to education in general and to the School District and its students. In order to qualify for an X-step salary rate for the final year of employment, an employee must be eligible for IMRF retirement criteria and have been employed for at least 8-15 years (\$750.00), 16-20 years (\$1250.00), 21-25 years (1750.00), and 26+ years (\$3250.00) with the Decatur Public School District 61. No later than six (6) months prior to the anticipated retirement date, employees must have notified the Director of Human Resources in writing that he/she will be retiring upon the specified date. To stay within the IMRF 125% Rule, a payment cycle will be established with payroll.

	1	Schedule	A	
0.25		2013/2014		
	A	В	С	D
1	13.98	14.57	15.17	15.76
2	14.23	14.82	15.42	16.01
3	14.48	15.07	15.66	16.26
4	14.73	15.32	15.91	16.51
5	14.98	15.57	16.16	16.76
6	15.23	15.82	16.41	17.01
7	15.47	16.07	16.66	17.26
8	15.72	16.32	16.91	17.51
9	15.97	16.57	17.16	17.76
10	16.22	16.82	17.41	18.01
11	16.47	17.07	17.66	18.26
12	16.72	17.32	17.91	18.51
13	16.97	17.57	18.16	18.76
14	17.22	17.82	18.41	19.00
15	17.47	18.07	18.66	19.25
16	17.72	18.32	18.91	19.50
17	17.97	18.56	19.16	19.75
18	18.22	18.81	19.41	20.00
19	18.47	19.06	19.66	20.25
20	18.72	19.31	19.91	20.50
21	18.97	19.56	20.16	20.75
22	19.22	19.81	20.41	21.00
23	19.47	20.06	20.66	21.25
24	19.72	20.31	20.91	21.50
25	19.97	20.56	21.16	21.75
26	20.22	20.81	21.41	22.00
27	20.47	21.06	21.65	22.25
28	20.72	21.31	21.90	22.50
29	20.97	21.56	22.15	22.75
30	21.22	21.81	22.40	23.00
31	21.46	22.06	22.65	23.25
32	21.71	22.31	22.90	23.50
33	21.96	22.56	23.15	23.75
34	22.21	22.81	23.40	24.00
35	22.46	23.06	23.65	24.25
36	22.71	23.31	23.90	24.50
37	22.96	23.56	24.15	24.75
38	23.21	23.81	24.40	24.99
39	23.46	24.06	24.65	25.24
40	23.71	24.31	24.90	25.49

		Schedule	A	
0.25		2014/2015		_
	A	В	С	D
1	14.23	14.82	15.42	16.01
2	14.48	15.07	15.67	16.26
3	14.73	15.32	15.91	16.51
4	14.98	15.57	16.16	16.76
5	15.23	15.82	16.41	17.01
6	15.48	16.07	16.66	17.26
7	15.72	16.32	16.91	17.51
8	15.97	16.57	17.16	17.76
9	16.22	16.82	17.41	18.01
10	16.47	17.07	17.66	18.26
11	16.72	17.32	17.91	18.51
12	16.97	17.57	18.16	18.76
13	17.22	17.82	18.41	19.01
14	17.47	18.07	18.66	19.25
15	17.72	18.32	18.91	19.50
16	17.97	18.57	19.16	19.75
17	18.22	18.81	19.41	20.00
18	18.47	19.06	19.66	20.25
19	18.72	19.31	19.91	20.50
20	18.97	19.56	20.16	20.75
21	19.22	19.81	20.41	21.00
22	19.47	20.06	20.66	21.25
23	19.72	20.31	20.91	21.50
24	19.97	20.56	21.16	21.75
25	20.22	20.81	21.41	22.00
26	20.47	21.06	21.66	22.25
27	20.72	21.31	21.90	22.50
28	20.97	21.56	22.15	22.75
29	21.22	21.81	22.40	23.00
30	21.47	22.06	22.65	23.25
31	21.71	22.31	22.90	23.50
32	21.96	22.56	23.15	23.75
33	22.21	22.81	23.40	24.00
34	22.46	23.06	23.65	24.25
35	22.71	23.31	23.90	24.50
36	22.96	23.56	24.15	24.75
37	23.21	23.81	24.40	25.00
38	23.46	24.06	24.65	25.24
39	23.71	24.31	24.90	25.49
40	23.96	24.56	25.15	25.74

F	I	Schedule	A	r
0.25		2015/2016		
	A	В	С	D
1	14.48	15.07	15.67	16.26
2	14.73	15.32	15.92	16.51
3	14.98	15.57	16.16	16.76
4	15.23	15.82	16.41	17.01
5	15.48	16.07	16.66	17.26
6	15.73	16.32	16.91	17.51
7	15.97	16.57	17.16	17.76
8	16.22	16.82	17.41	18.01
9	16.47	17.07	17.66	18.26
10	16.72	17.32	17.91	18.51
11	16.97	17.57	18.16	18.76
12	17.22	17.82	18.41	19.01
13	17.47	18.07	18.66	19.26
14	17.72	18.32	18.91	19.50
15	17.97	18.57	19.16	19.75
16	18.22	18.82	19.41	20.00
17	18.47	19.06	19.66	20.25
18	18.72	19.31	19.91	20.50
19	18.97	19.56	20.16	20.75
20	19.22	19.81	20.41	21.00
21	19.47	20.06	20.66	21.25
22	19.72	20.31	20.91	21.50
23	19.97	20.56	21.16	21.75
24	20.22	20.81	21.41	22.00
25	20.47	21.06	21.66	22.25
26	20.72	21.31	21.91	22.50
27	20.97	21.56	22.15	22.75
28	21.22	21.81	22.40	23.00
29	21.47	22.06	22.65	23.25
30	21.72	22.31	22.90	23.50
31	21.96	22.56	23.15	23.75
32	22.21	22.81	23.40	24.00
33	22.46	23.06	23.65	24.25
34	22.71	23.31	23.90	24.50
35	22.96	23.56	24.15	24.75
36	23.21	23.81	24.40	25.00
37	23.46	24.06	24.65	25.25
38	23.71	24.31	24.90	25.49
39	23.96	24.56	25.15	25.74
40	24.21	24.81	25.40	25.99

r	1	Schedule	A	
0.25		2017/2018		
	A	В	С	D
1	14.73	15.32	15.92	16.51
2	14.98	15.57	16.17	16.76
3	15.23	15.82	16.41	17.01
4	15.48	16.07	16.66	17.26
5	15.73	16.32	16.91	17.51
6	15.98	16.57	17.16	17.76
7	16.22	16.82	17.41	18.01
8	16.47	17.07	17.66	18.26
9	16.72	17.32	17.91	18.51
10	16.97	17.57	18.16	18.76
11	17.22	17.82	18.41	19.01
12	17.47	18.07	18.66	19.26
13	17.72	18.32	18.91	19.51
14	17.97	18.57	19.16	19.75
15	18.22	18.82	19.41	20.00
16	18.47	19.07	19.66	20.25
17	18.72	19.31	19.91	20.50
18	18.97	19.56	20.16	20.75
19	19.22	19.81	20.41	21.00
20	19.47	20.06	20.66	21.25
21	19.72	20.31	20.91	21.50
22	19.97	20.56	21.16	21.75
23	20.22	20.81	21.41	22.00
24	20.47	21.06	21.66	22.25
25	20.72	21.31	21.91	22.50
26	20.97	21.56	22.16	22.75
27	21.22	21.81	22.40	23.00
28	21.47	22.06	22.65	23.25
29	21.72	22.31	22.90	23.50
30	21.97	22.56	23.15	23.75
31	22.21	22.81	23.40	24.00
32	22.46	23.06	23.65	24.25
33	22.71	23.31	23.90	24.50
34	22.96	23.56	24.15	24.75
35	23.21	23.81	24.40	25.00
36	23.46	24.06	24.65	25.25
37	23.71	24.31	24.90	25.50
38	23.96	24.56	25.15	25.74
39	24.21	24.81	25.40	25.99
40	24.46	25.06	25.65	26.24

Schedule B

A B C D	PAID DAYS (Including benefit days)	EXPLANATION ¹	POSITION
A 1	180 Days Less Than 4hrs per day	Work same days as teachers; Do Not Work Emergency Days	² Elementary Secretary I
A2	192 or 193 (dependent upon Memorial Day) Days Equal to or Greater Than 4hrs per day	Work same days as teachers; Do Not Work Emergency Days	³ K-8 Elementary Secretary Main Office Receptionist-High Schools ⁴ Middle School Clerk Typist
B1	213 Days – 8hrs per day	Work same days as teachers; 2 Weeks before school; 2 Weeks after-School; Work Emergency Days	Library Secretary Itinerant Pre-Kindergarten Grant Secretary Small Learning Communities Secretary
B2	262, 261, or 260 Days-8hrs per day	Work Emergency Days	District Receptionist/Microfilm Clerk HS Registrar Secretary Library Secretary-Collections & Processing Mail Clerk
C 1	228 Days-8hrs per day No Half-Days in Summer	Work same days as teachers; 3 Weeks before school; 4 Weeks after school; Work Emergency Days	Secretary to SEAP Program
C1	233 Days-8hrs per day No Half-Days in Summer	Work same days as teachers; 4 Weeks before school; 4 Weeks after school; Work Emergency Days	Alternative Education Secretary Secretary to Coordinator of Health Services
C2	228 Days-8hrs per day Half Days in Summer ⁵ Actual Paid Days become 262, 261, or 260	Work same days as teachers; 3 Weeks before school; 4 Weeks after school; Half Days in Summer; Work Emergency Days	Secretary to Elementary Principal
C2	233 Days-8hrs per day Half Days in Summer ⁵ Actual Paid Days Become 262, 261, 260	Work same days as teachers; 4 Weeks before school; 4 Weeks after school; Half Days in Summer; Work Emergency Days	Secretary to K-8 Principal
СЗ	262, 261, or 260 Days-8hrs per day	Work Emergency Days	Curriculum/Textbook secretary SAMHSA Secretary Secretary to Assistant Director Special Education/SEA/Receptionist Secretary to High School Principal Secretary to Middle School Principal Special Education Student Records
D	262, 261, or 260 Days-8hrs per day	Work Emergency Days	Accounts Payable Analyst Secretary to the Director of Curriculum & Instruction Claims & Statistical Informational Analyst Claims Supervisor Classified Staff Secretary-HR Data Analyst Payroll Analyst Purchasing Analyst Purchasing/Transportation Clerk Analyst Secretary to Assistant Superintendent Secretary to Director and Assistant Director of Building & Grounds Secretary to Director of Special Education Secretary to the Director of Student Services Special Education Secretary-Records/Data Analyst Special Education Secretary-TAMES

¹ Days before and days after are generally stated, and subject to scheduling at discretion of District and with mutual agreement with DESPA. If no mutual agreement is reached, specific language of the contract as above will apply

² K-6th Part-Time Secretarial Hours:

0-349 Pupils/2 hours per day & 350 or above/3 hours per day

0-449 Pupils/4 hours per day & 450 or above/6 hours per day 4 hours per day

⁵ Only one-half day is paid for July 4

 ³ K-8th Part-Time Secretarial Hours:
 ⁴ Middle School Clerk Typist Hours: